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SENATE No. 2624

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

3 VYINTRODUCED JANUARY 2, '1985

By Senators STOCKMAN, VAN WAGNER, CODEY, LESNIAK,
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JACKMAN LYNCH, BROWN, FORAN FELDMAN, DUMONT'
GAGLIANO CAUFIELD and MCMANIMON

S Referred to Committee on Revenue, Finance and AppropriatiOns

AX Acr estabhshmg the New Jersey Cultural Capltal Improve-.
ment Fund, prov1d1ng for the adm1n1strat10n thereof, and makmg

an ,appropr1at10n

‘Be1r ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the Statev
of N ew Jersey: : :
1. There i is established in the Department of State a nonlapsmg,

revolvmg fund to be known as the ““New Jersey ‘Cultural Cap1tal'
.. Improvement Fund.’”’” There shall be’ ‘depos1ted in the fund any
. moneys appropriated by the rLegis_lature‘for inclnsion therein and

_the interest or income earned on moneys in the fund shall be

credited to the fund. The‘pu‘rpose of the fund is to prOvide State
grants to assist cultural centers owned and operated by norncom-
merecial enterprises with the1r capital construction prOJects ‘The

~ fund shall be administered by the Secretary of State.

2. The Cultural Capital Imprqvement Fund Ceordinating Com-

mittee is established and shall be ‘compos‘ed of the Secretary of

State, who shall serve as Chairman, the State Treasurer, the Chair-
.man of the New Jersey State Council on the Arts and two members

of the publlc one of whom shall be appomted by the President of . '_

“the New J ersey Senate and one of whom shall be appomted by the

Speaker of the New Jersey General Assembly The Cultural Capltal

Improvement Fund Coordinating Commlttee shall’ determlne the '

'orgamzatlons that may receive grants from the fund and- the -
amounts of the grants. To assist th1s comm1ttee in its work, the

New J ersey State Council on the Arts shall convene a spec1al panel
of nationally recogm_zed arts experts who shall assess the artistic



P
(ST TR TOR

© 0 D O WD

RO ORD DO DD RO R b = b ek bt b ekt et e
RSO ST R G S PN AT S T P SR R SR =

[
[=x}

27

[
w

oW N = O 30 O W N

2

- merits of all applications submitted. In making its final determina-

tion, the Cultural Capital Improvement Fund Coordinating Com-
mittee shall consider the various 'geog'raph'ical needs of the State.
3. To be ehglble for a grant from the fund, the board of directors

of the applying organization shall:

- a. Maintain ex1stmg or propose to operate new fac1ht1es of

sufficient State or regional s1on1ﬁcance For the purpose of this -
act, a .fac111ty to be of sufficient State or regional significance shall
have apprOpriate and requisite spaces, technical capabilities, and
professional management to present or produce year-ro_und‘pro-
grams and activities of high artistic quality; shall ensure that '

quality prodrems of a variety of artistic disciplines that serve

- broad and diverse reglonal audiences are preeented and shall have

the necessary seatmg capac1ty, staging, appurtenant production

- preparation spaces, auxiliary facilities, sound, lighting and other

. technical aspects, management, marketing and maintenance sup-

port, convenient parkin‘g,‘to attract a wide range of quality‘per-
forming groups and to serve New Jersey’s citizens on a regional
basis. - . ‘

b. Have in place a capital improvement development plan.

c. Demonstrate the ability to match the share of State aid re- -
quested under the provieiyon'e of this act in the following manner:

(1) Generate $1.00 of nonpubhc funds for every $1.00 of State
aid souOht - ‘

(2) Generate $1.00 of non-State public funds for every $.50 of
State aid sought. ’

Monies raised for ongoing projects up to one year prior to the .

enactment of this act may be eligible for State assistance under

the proviéioné of the above mentioned matching format, but under

no circumstances shall funds generated prior to that time qualify
for assistance under the provisions of this act.

4. No grants from the fund shall be made for projects that are
less than $100,000.00 and all grants shall be for capital projects.
For the purposes of this act, oapital projects shall mean: realty
acqu1s1t10n bulldlng acquisition ; building expansmn or repalr and
repa1r and replaeement of fixtures. Fixtures include, but are not
limited to, seatmg, curtains and lighting.

No more than 10% of any “amount appropuated to the fund shall :
go to any one pro;ect

5. There is approprlated $50 000,000.00 from the General Fuud
to the Department of State, for the purpose of esiabhshmg the
New Jersey Cultural Capital Improvement Fund.

6. This act shall take effect immediately.
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The citizens of I\e\\ Jerse) have mcreasmgly demanded access

to professional World c]ass artlstlc endeavors in thelr revlons TO :
meet this demand, our State, through the private and pubhc sectors

‘has mcreasmgh invested ‘in the arts in ‘an endeavor to nounsh
E hlgh quality Pel‘formm(r arts orgamzatlons of natlonal prommence S
~ Because of these actions, New Jersey is fast becommg one of the .

~most s1gn1ﬁcant repos1tor1es of artists and arts orgamzatlons L

These artists and orgamzatlons require high quality reglonal facili-

' ,tres in order to maintain their audiences and attract the best pos-

sible performing organizations to New J ersey’ The maintenance

and modermzatlon of the State’s reglonal cultural centers have not s

suﬁimently kept pace with this grow ing demand and need ‘The
reason for this impeded growth is the lack of funds. ' '
Thls bill provides the money which is desperately needed to maln- '

“tain and modermze reglonal cultural centers. Thls, in turn, will

continue the growth of the arts in our State. This growth is es-

~ sential to the establishment of a positive cultural identity for the

State and the ab111ty of New Jersey s performmg arts to attract

‘ tourism to the State

Regional cultural centers will create tbe economxc and cultural

_env1ronment needed to enhance the quality of life in New Jersey’s -

cities and counties.” Growth of the arts will also contmue to help

to attract busmess and mdustry to New J ersey




SENATOR WYNONA M. LIPMAN (Chairwoman)i® (Senator Lipman opens
hearlng before the arrival of hearing reporters.-: The flrst person to
speak is Senator Gerald R. Stockman, Vice Chairman of the Committee.) -

, SENATOR STOCKMAN: - The critical question, and one 1 hope the
-hearlng today will ‘address, is whether New Jersey’ c1tlzens -- all of_
Cits citizens, rlch and poor, young ‘and. old, urban and suburban, black
- and white -- have enough interest in investment in thelrpmuseums, and
their theater halls~ and concert halls, to make it sensible to
'contrlbute 11m1ted publlc moneys to helplng restore and preserve these
: places of art appre01at10n. v

I belleve the return to our State will far, far-eXceed-the
1nvestment. The arts, as an 1ndustry, have been shown to be not only a
‘direct source of jobs, income, and taxlgeneration, but-they promote the
region and its 1mage as a location for business and re31dence. l

This legislation has b1partlsan support._ - My colleague,'
vAssemblywoman Maureen Ogden, has been a strong advocate of this
leglslatlon 1 hope today s hearing will provide us w1th the .impetus
to move the blll out of this Committee, into the Approprlatlons
vCommlttee, and on to enactment. ’ : |

‘ There are many dlstlngu1shed people here to speak. Some of.
“them have had to leave; therefore, 1 do not want to 1engthen my -
comments. I do have a statement from the Mayor of the City of Trenton,
Arthur J. Holland, which he asked me to deliver to the Committee, and
Whichgl will circulate, strongly‘endorsing and supporting this bill. |
| With those very brief comments, 1 would like to return to the
_Commlttee, where, of course, 1 w1ll keep an open mind on the bill, and
allow my colleague from the Assembly to-express herself 1ndependent1y.

' Thank you very much. ' . _ .

- SENATOR LIPMAN: Welcome, 'Assemblywoman TOQden. We 1look
forward to hearing your comments'on the bill. Will you pleasedhold on
for . just  one moment ,untili our hearing reportersd are seated?.
(affirmative response) All ‘right, Assemblywoman, will ‘you begin,
please? ‘ ' . R ‘ ' o
ASSEFBLYHOMAN MAUREEN OGDEN: Thank you‘very much, Senator Lipman and

members of the Commlttee.v I, too, am pleased to. join with Senator -



i\Stockman‘ in supporting S-2624. "1 have the identical bill in the
Assembly, A-3031. The twot bills; aas we have introduced - and
supported them, represent a broad-based blpartlsan effort on our part.
1 uoulA like tu. brtefly read the followlng comments.'~

The succeed1ng speakers will be deallng with one of the
follow1ng five areas accordlng to. their knowledge and expertlse. These
“areas are: 1) need for the fac111t1es, 2) structure of the bill
itself; 3) challenge grant and matching funds, 4) economic impact; and
‘5), quallty of life.

" In order to avoid repetltlon, I would llke to focus on the
structure of the bill, espec1a11y the need for the "panel of natlonally
' recognlzed arts experts -who would assess the artistic merits of the
appllcatlons submitted."

Varlous arts organlzatlons have received funds in the past ‘as
» llne 1tems in the 301nt Approprlatlons Committee recommendatlons, and 1
do not questlon the need for these funds. I believe, however, that the
State's money would be‘used most wisely if ‘the appropriations were made
on the basis of artistic merit,jas~proposed’in this legislation. There
is a need to rationalize the current ~system to promote excellence in
all our facilities. . When plans are rev1ewed by experts, gu1dance can
be given covering hany technlcal aspects -~ 31ze, seatlng capacity,
acoustlcs, llghtlng, 'scenery storage, and the general appropriateness
of ‘the building for the types of performances that will be given.
Muéeums‘will.havevtheir diétinctivesneeds{ Management and marketing
‘need to be eValuated as well. The recommendations by the panel of
experts would ensure that the State's money was being invested wisely.

“To quallfy for funds under thlS bill, arts groups must be
nonprofit, have ‘capital; development plans, ‘and maintain or propose to
operate facilities of regional significance. A -private/public
partnership_would be encouraged,by‘the'1:1‘matching basis. OnlyISU
cents of State money will match'eachjdollar raisedffrom'other public
agencies -- Federal, county, or local sources. All‘matching grants
will be made for capital progects of at ‘least $100,000, but no more

than 10% of the moneys will go to any one project.



~ Similar restorations, rehabilitations, and  expansions are

"‘ taking'placesthroughoutlthe oountry. iMore than'130‘theaters have been

restored in recent years. Une of the most ambltlous progects is the

L $27 million rechoration of ‘three theaters in Playhouse Square 1n,

'Cleveland The pre31dent of this large complex has. summed up its -
,1mportance for Cleveland: A theater is a good rallying polnt for a

E communlty. - Theater cuts across all kinds of economlc, racial, and

,governmenta] llnes. It can serve all people in the communlty, It's a
unlfylng force " EVR ' |

“Until now, 1t has been c1t1es, recognlzlng the 1mportance of

"artistic reJuvenatlon,for a moribund downtown, that have taken»the lead -

in restoring cultural facilities. ~Just  last . month, New York City
announced that the capital portion of its cultural budget would ber
$56 6 m11110n,‘1ncreased from $36 3 m1111on last year. Bess Meyerson,
the Clty s Cultural Affairs Comm1331oner, explalned the need for these
vfunds:‘ "It s very difficult for these 1nst1tut10ns to ralse money. from -

~ individual donors for nuts and bolts. People are much more acce351b1e

‘for special exhibits;, but when . it comes to plumblng and . lockers, ‘it' s

very hard, and I thlnk that‘s where the respons1blllty of the C1ty as al

- cultural center comes in."

, To date, only 01t1es have recognlzed a respon51b111ty for
’capltal 1mprovements to cultural centers. Now,.New Jersey, as a State,

has a unique opportunity to devote the: financial resources to restore

~and ‘improve our.oultural buildings. ‘The Governor and the Legislature._,'

have greatly increased the funds for arts programs in the past few
‘.years, but that. money will not realize its full potential if the plays,

3 ooncerts,> and opera and dance 'programs continue to be ’presented in

~halls where the roof leaks, the’plasterbis falling, and the seats are

broken.b

Now is the time for these ‘beautiful old bu1ld1ngs to be

renovated - Now. is the time for New Jersey to commlt itself to
~excellence in the arts by prov1d1ng ‘the desperately needed capltal-
‘dollars. Now is the time for the State of New Jersey to take the lead
in stimulating the rebu11d1ng of our cultural foundatlons, cornerstones

for: future economlc development and artlstlc v1ta11ty.



‘1 strongly concur w1th Senator Stockman and support him in
hlS presentatlon of hlS blll here today, and 1 urge the Commlttee to
favorably report it out. Thank you. SRR , L

’ SENATOR LIPMAN° " The nk )ou very much, Assemblywoman.OQden.,
Senator Cardinale, do you have any - quest10ns7 : o . o
SENATOR CARDINALE: " I do not have any questlons at thls tlme.’
~ SENATOR LIPMAN° All rlght Thank you, Assemblywoman. We
will contlnue with the Honorable Jane Burgio, Secretary of State.
SECRETARY OF STATE JANE BURGIO: I would like to thank the Committee
for convening this hearing and for allowing supporters of 5-2624 and
A-3031 to present testimony on the need for this 1egislation.t These
‘bills have the full backing of the Department of State, which houses
several cultural agencies of the State government, and which would -
administer the New Jersey Cultural Capital Imptovement Fund these bills
would establish. | '

I want to express the Department's deeo appreciation to the
Legislature for the generous support it has shown to the New Jersey
State Council on the Arts. As you khow, nearly all .of the money the
Art Council. receives goes toward funding the daily operations of
hundreds of arts organizations and individuals. =~ None of that
assistance would be possible without the continued backing of the
Governor and the’Legislature, v

It is no secret that the cultural life of this State has
undergone a major transformation in: recent years. A State that was
once .thought by outsiders to be -a cultural wasteland now boasts an
extraordinary number of quality arts organizations that have either
achieved national prominence or are on the verge of doing so. All of
the groups which have achieved this distimction have done so in part
because this Administration, this Legislature, and the present Arts
Council have had the courage to get behind them. In standing together,'
these three entities sent a mess sage to the nation that New Jersey
recognizes what the arts mean to the quality of life in this State;.
what they mean to the people; and what they mean to the economic health

of the municipalities and the reglons,

4



In the years.during which New Jersey's arts organizationsw

were making tremendous strides art1st1cally, ‘many of the halls on which - -

they depended to reach their audiences fell 1nto dlsrepalr.; Unless
‘somethlng is done to repalr them soon, muth r‘ ths money the State has‘
allocated to cultural act1v1t1es will ‘go to waste, 81nce “many of the
‘groups that have brought distinction to thls State may face extlnctlon .
for want of adequate facilities in which to perform or exhibit the1r
works. L ‘ ‘ )
. The truth is, a state of emergency exists in many of New
Jersey's cultural centers. 'For one reason or other, there is:hardly a
cultural facility »in,othis State in “which' full productions‘nof the
four performing arts disciplines -- dance, symphony, theater, and opera
-- -can be successfully mounted. This means that'all of the State's
quality organlzatlons are; compelled to work in places which . are
1nadequate for their purposes. Often. this has meant the complete -

denial to entlre regions of performances in certain fields for want of

& safe and suitable place.. In the visual arts, similar problems exist -

for museums, whlch ‘are -unable to display some of their most valuable
' obJects because of shortages of space. ' '

Many of the centers to which I refer were constructed in the
early decades of the century. - Most  have undergone - few, if - any,
renovations since they first opened their' doors.- Several are
~architectural treasures’fthat, once served as anchors, for entire'
: communities and neighborhoods. With your help they can become‘living
symbols of revitalization and hope. Inadequate wiring, . faulty
‘vlighting, rotted floorboards, lnsufficient seating, poor ventilation,
and obsolete equipmenty make serving the purposes intended‘ for them
_impossible. Many have seen”in this legiSlation the means of shoring-upv
' these centers at a cost that would'represent‘a fraction of what it
would take to’replace‘them. We also see it as a method of ‘availing
»everyjregion,of‘this State of the highest quality programing. We only
have to look to other states to see how the arts have contributed to
' themeconomic revitalization of ‘the most depressed cities and reglons.
In no other state has that kind of urban revival taken place in

.substandard fa01llt1es, nor can it happen here.



Before imaking way  for .others  who: will provide ydu with
further evidence as to-the need forvthis-legislatiOn, I would like to
comment on the major strengths of these 'bills and -to suggest two
changes I believe would strengthen them.  First among thei. stzengths’
is  the provision requiring organlzatlons that seek funding to match
'every State dollar with other sources of fundlng. This means that any
money the Leglslature appropriates will generate at least twice that
amount in capltal renovations. We con51der this a good use of State
fundlng and finding the matching requirement a reasonable test for
‘viable entities to meet.

Second, we are .in full agreement with the requirement that
will allow funding only to organizations that can be proved to be of
sufficient State or regional Sighificance. This provision is
consistent with the bill's intention of making quality programing in
each of the above-mentioned disciplines available to all regiohs. If
the effect of this proviéion will prevent the dissjpation of State
funds over too wide a territory, the proVision mandating that no more
than 10% of the appropriated amount of money go to any single project
will stop any injection of State moneys to any one pFOJeCt at the
expense of the rest of the State. ‘ ‘

" In place of the Cultural Capital Improvement Coordinating
Committee this bill would create to review the applications for
funding, I suggest that this function be assigned to the New Jersey
State Council on the Arts, with the provision that the Council convene
a special panel of experts‘in the field to advise it in its work, and
that it consider the geographical needs of the State in its
deliberations. The intent of this change is to guard against the
emergence of two competing artvagencies, one concerned with ope:ating
grahts, and the other with the Council.. Presumably, once a hall has
been renovated, its managérs may wish to apply to the Arts Council for
operating funds. The number of State agencies before which such groups
need to appear should be kept to a minimum. Also, tne Arts Council and
its‘staff‘df.professionaIS‘would be better equipped to assemble the
kind of a panel of experts to which I refer than would any other board.



‘ ‘1 Instead of the aporopriation of $50 million'being proposed
-for the New Jersey Cultural Capltal A331stance Fund in its first year
of »operatlon, I would propose a five-year phase Wlth an annual
appropriation of $10 to $15‘ million each year. ‘This might  mear
inaugurating the funds with $15 mllllon the . flrst year, $10 mllllon
each’ ensu1ng year, and $5 m11110n at the end, or $10 million each year
for five years. - This plan would give the panel of experts sufficient
»time to do their work and would allowAthe'Arts‘Council‘to report back
to the . Leglslature perlodlcally on the status of on901ng and upcomlng
prOJects.' ' o ‘ ‘ '

What is importent is that  this fund be 'created, and
appropriated sufficient money to begin its operatlon. The conditions
of our halls are simply too bad to be ignored. |

Thank you for your tlme, and I would welcome your questlons.
‘Thank you very much, Senators.,
- SENATOR LIPMAN: ‘Senator Stockman, do you have -any. leadlng
oquestions? .‘: \ R :
| » SENATOR VSTDCKMAN:, No, ‘none' at all. I 'understand and
appreciate the Secretary of State's comments. lI do not think there is
anythlng further I have to say at this point.

SENATOR LIPMAN: Senator Cardinale? ‘ o

SENATOR CARDINALE: I have just one question. - You spoke
~ about reducing the epproprietion'within this legislation. However, as
I iook at the list ofbproposed projects that has been presented to us,
I see'that the costs of those projects very significently‘exceed the -
- total amount:of this'appropriation; If we were to do that, how would
you establish priorities as to which projects would be done'in which
year? Wouldn't that be a very difficult thing to do? They all seem to
. be‘orojects‘which are'ready to go right now. How would you propose to
" do that? - ) | | |
© SECRETARY OF STATE BURGIO: 1 agree with you that it would be
very difficult, and I agree with you that it would be preferable ‘o
receive a.larger amount of money the first year. However, I recogniieq
the fact toat there are many competing interests which would also like

to have larger amounts of money this year. We would do it the same way



as we do w1th any other approprlated moneys. A panel onid review allb
of the progects. As we mentioned, every. proJect ‘would depend on
'matchlng funds._ Every progect ‘would be looked into to see which ones
were ready to go and ready to spend the money flrst.‘ We would like the
money. to be used 1mmed1ate1y, as soon as they recelve 1t.v-'

The experts would recommend. to the Arts Council, the “Arts
Counc11 would try to treat them as falrly as p0881b1e on a- reglonalv
b3313° and, the Leglslature would de91gnate regional areas to make sure
that all parts of the State were being treated falrly.

SENATOR CARDINALE: The concern 1. would have wlth that
approach -would be, if you don't do certain things well, and’certalnly
tne area of thedarts is one where you have to do things extremely well, .
if there was a parceling out of money to sort of keep lots of orojects
getting their share, it might be as bad -- you know, almost as bad‘?—
as not doing certain projects at all. 1 hope, juat from that comment,
that you will realize you have at least this quarter's aupoort for
going toward getting as much done in the initial stage as is possible
on any given individual project, even if it means that something must
be let go for a year as a totallty, to go into doing some of these
projects extremely we]l.

SECRETARY OF STATE BURGIO: - Absolutely. I would not like to
dissipate the ‘money on very‘smalllappropriations‘that would not have a
significant effect, 1 believe that in® the legislation there is a
minimum amount. Is that correct?‘ I would like to check‘with the
sponsors, ’ |

| SENATOR STOCKMAN: Yes. |

SECRETARY OF STATE BURGIO: One hundred thousand dollars
would be the minimum amount. We feel that any less than that would not
have an effect when it comes to construction. - Costs of construction in
too small amounts would not accomplish what we are trying to

‘accomplish, If the Legislature and the Governor saw fit to increase
the amount, we would naturally be very happy, and we would be able to
appropriate money to more organizations in larger amounts. '

SENATOR LIPMAN: - Secretary Burglo, you know, I don t think I

have to explain to you, as a former legislator, that we on this



Committee do not have the_ fihalfrsays about}grearranging ’the-bsort of
~ language the bill should haVe‘ih'an appropriaticns matter, ‘This has to.
go to the Revenue Finance, and Appropriations Committee. What we will
decide today is whether or not the policy behind thls blll is a flttlng
- poliey for the State of New Jersey to observe. Then the Approprlatlons
”Commlttee will adjust the fundlng. 1 JUSt wanted’ to explaln why I will
make no comment about changlng the funds. I think we must consider
that today, $50 million-- | R TR |

SENATOR STOCKMAN: ~ Madam Chalrman, I thlnk the questlon -
“and I appreciate and respect the Secretary of State' s suggestlons -- of
'Lthe exact design of the appropriation, the amount of it, is better left
to the Revenue, Finance, and Appropriations >Committee. I'm sure
‘Senator Weiss will be interested in discussing that, and I think that
is the appropriate Committee to finally resolve-the‘exact dollar amount
of the appropriation. '

v -So, I would ask this Commlttee to pass thls bill out in 1ts
present form, with the full $50 mllllon allocation. By that action I
do not necessarily mean to 1nd1cate ‘ah ,1rre901ute, , absolute
determination that it be $50 million or nothing. . We will work ‘on that
in RF&A. R S
"~ SECRETARY OF‘STATE BURGIO: We will be very happy to retarn
to speak to the RF&A Committee. | ' ‘ : o

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, Madam Chairman, T think that

,  while the Secretary of -State is’here, because she really plays such a

31gn1f1cant role in the Arts Council and in thls whole subject, 1 would
like to ask her to reiterate what I believe is’ the case, and that 1s,
the leglslatlve 1ntent of this bill is not an elltlst effort. It 1sh
not a proposal ‘that "is simply 1ntended to help ‘the wealthy, by any
- means. = But, the ‘fact is, this leglslatlon will produce results in
- major urban areas and will provide opportunltles for many people of :
"very limited resources and wealth. Frankly, I think that has been a
key, perhaps misunderstood issue, in the debate S0 far. I-think there
has been a certaln initial reaction to mlslnterpret this proposal as
one that would just benefit the very wealthy

' I would like the Secretary of State to confirm if I am rlght
in my thinking. I think she will agree with me that that is so.



| | QCSECRETARY'UF“STATE BURGIO: Abeolutely;’IJcouldn't\agree with
~you - more. ~Some of the suggested prOJects ‘where fund raising has
already started are in the urban areas 1n both North and South Jersey.
We have seen restorations of old theaters into art centers in other
‘c1t1es all over the country wherebyLwhole”nelghborhoods were 1mproved..,
The renovationa have brought industry,g business,'gand economic'
prosperlty into prev1ously run-down areas. I would like to see that
happen in New Jersey. ' e L RS _
| ASSEMBLYWOMAN OGDEN: C”Madam,Chairman, I would also like to

veého what . the Secretary.of State said because although I represent a
suburban section in my»legislative district, 1 have always seen this
effort, this capital 'improyement fund, as mainly aiding the urban
. areas and revitalizing the”'citieei As a member of the National
Conference of State Legislatures' Cultural Committee, I have seen this
happen throughout the whole of the United States. This is why I feel
so strongly about this bill here in New Jersey; Certainly, several of

our big cities still have aJway to go to come back, and I feel that the
" ‘arts are an essential component in helping to bring them back. I think
that has been one of the’things that has been missing.

| Clearly, all of wus are looking at this in a statewide

context. We are not looking at it in a narrow legislative district
conteit. We are looking at it for the good of the entire State and,
also, for the good of the residents of the entire State.

SENATOR LIPMAN: Secretary Burgio, ‘we have to clarify a
section of these amendments. -Joe (addressing Committee Aide, Joseph
Capalbo) would you ask Secretary Burgio. your ‘questions about the
amendments, please? - : =
, MR. CAPALBO: We have copies‘of the proposed amendments to
Senate Bill 2624. They are in two areas. _ Basically, youvw0uld be
eliminating the coordinating committee = and establishing the Arts
Council, Then, in the second area, you‘want to change the matching
numbers. as indicated on this sheet. » '

SECRETARY OF STATE BURGIO: Do we have copies of that?
(dddre581ng Mr. Felzenberg, A331stant‘ Secretary of State, who - was
-sitting in the audience) ‘ | ‘ : ‘

ALVIN S. FELZENBERG: The matching requirement?
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‘MR. CAPALBO: Yes. , iwl ,
~ MR. FELZENBERG: No, that wouldn't change. I heard you say
that this Commlttee would not discuss the $50 million amount.
MR. CAPALBO: No, we are not changing the $50 million, but  in
terms of the blll itself-- :
SECRETARY OF STATE BURGIO: Do you have the amendment?
MR. FELZENBERG: The . amendment w1th regard to the Arts

Council was flled w1th the Committee a week ago. That is the only

amendment we submitted.
' SENATOR LIPMAN: Whose amendment is t:hls'7

ASSEMBLYWOMAN OGDEN: I think it is the ‘same thlng,‘but in
- different language -- the matchlng for private sources and then--

MR. FELZENBERG: Oh, vyes. The one that would changé the 2:1
match to a 1:1 match. . _ .

~ ASSEMBLYWOMAN OGDEN: That's what it is.

-~ MR.. FELZENBERG: I'm sorry; I mlsunderstood. It would be 50
cents on-one dollar of public money. , e ' :

SENATOR CARDINALE So, you want those, also, to be included
in your proposed amendment . » _ .

MR. FELZENBERG: If you would; please. Thank you.

SECRETARY OF STATE‘BURGIO; I would respectfully request that
the Committee‘bonsider this. _ ‘ | -

SENATOR . LIPMAN: That, we can do. Are. .there any oﬁher
comments or questions for the Secrétary of State? (negative response)
Ukay, Madam Secretary, thank you very much for coming today.

~We had a gentleman here from the Madison Square - Garden

Corpofation, but, unfortunately, 1 thlnk he had to leave. May we have -
Mr. John Hyef, Executive Director of thevNew Jersey_Symphohy‘Urchestra;
and Ms. Carolyn Clark, Executive Director of the New Jersey Ballet?
JOHN L. HYER: Thank you very much, Senator. I don't believe Ms. Clark
is here today, but because I work with her closely, I know that 1 can .
speak abodt her problems and, also, abouf the operation of the State
opera. ‘ - _ o

The subject I would like to address briefly is one of need.
I.am told that the Committee received a copy of this document (holding

up document he is referring to).
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SENATOR LIPMAN- Yes,fwe do have it.

MR. HYER: I almost feel as if T don't have to explain it,
unless there is a real reason to do so. ‘You can see, quite quickly, a
list of the: p.OJe,ts -~ this IOldo out like so --‘and behind them are
some pictures of halls that‘are in disrepair. 1 think it would sufficg
if I just told you some of the experiences that ne, asvusérs, have had
with these facilities;n 1 am always drawing analogies, but I think it
‘13 safe to say that a symphony, a ballet, or a opera is somewhat llke a
_dlamond. If ycu put the diamond in your pocket, you still have a
dlamond but there is no way to show it off.

New Jersey has no way to successfully show off its premiere
arts groups. Of course, 1 want to stress, too, that thls bill has to
do. with the v1sual arts and the museums, which we, as performlng arts
groups, very much support. ‘ .

The pictures you have vin the vbooklet are  just
representétive. It would take a volume this large (demonstrates) to
show you all of the facilitiesfandnwhat is wrong with them. . We do have
a slide show, which we would be glad to show you. We have just shown
here: | the John Harms Englewdod Plazé, the WilliamnCarlOS Williéms
Theater -~ both of those are in Bergen County -- Symphony Hall in Essex
County, the Trenton War Memorial, -and McCarter Theater, both in Mercer
County. We did not put in any examples from South Jerséy because,
quite frankly, at-this'pqint in time, there are no major  facilities
there. However, this bill wduld pfovide for construction undér,certéin
circumstances for thosé regions"o’r’:_‘ﬂtne State ~ which do not - have
facilities. - vv

" You have already been told that this is an emergency bill.
'No one can tell you how true that is like the Symphony. VWe lost a
pianc leg on a stage in Red Bank. It went through Ehe stage and was
sheared bff.’ If you think it is not difficult to find a piano leg on
Sunday morning at ten o'clock in Red Bank, you have another. think
coming. | ’ ‘ '
| Thé‘ New Jersey Symphony has Ehe sole distinction ~- some
peoplé say they are tired of hearlng this, but it's true -- of being

the only major symphony that has been rained on in every f80111t> it
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has ever played at in the State of New Jéfsayi; The roofs of these
facilities ~are 60 to 70 years old and they leak. - They leak

, particUlarly on my first vioiin section, and the violinists object

- strenuously.
The other thing you should be aware of -- and I found out
_that some stagehands just couldn't understand :this -- is that the

orchestra will not play when it is not 68 degtees‘on the stage. The
stagehands thought, "Well, those prima donnasithink they are really
something; they won't play just because it isn't 68 degrees." A good
woodwind instrument made out of  ebony will crack, because of the
~density of the wood, if you blow hot air into the middle and the
outside is a different ‘temperature. I have héd several very fine

oboes, costing‘ several hundreds of dollars,s:zrack as a result of

the 1nadequate heating in these facilities.

Well, one would say, "Why not get them heated7“ The ‘answer
is that in many of these - facilities the QQQ: “that you bring the

equipment in comes directly from the outside:.right onto the stage.
When you open the door, all of the heat goesiani,:and it takes hours to
fill the enormous column of air where the fly area is.

I'm being specific like this to show:.you the desperate -- not
Just because we want it -- but the desperate candltlons under which the
'symphony orchestra plays. The floors which:Carplyn Clark's dancers
have to‘use are dangerous. Bones can be br0keﬁ:mepause the floors have
not beén‘properly maintained. The lighting iﬁithese facilities-- 1
know some theater managers are ready to kill me for being outrageous
enough to say this,‘but the wiring is substandard. It is not good;’not
good*aﬁ ail, There are no acoustical shelves, and an acoustical shelf
works just like this. If you have sound on _the stage and you cannot
get it out, what are we paying our money for?- There is not one
' facility that has the capability of doingiiwhat the New - York
>Philharmonic or any other orchestra in the Unitéd States can do, and
- that is to get all of the sound out to the audience where théy can
| enjoybit. ‘ .

Regarding: the seating in these'~halls, most . of it is

uncomfortable. I am glad to report that Symphony Hall -- which is
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going_to_be far ahead»bf thisrprogfém -- is going to be affixing seats
this summer, but many theaters haVe seats which are’unusable. We sell
a seat; and the ﬁérson"comes_to us in déSpération and says, "I can't
find the »seét.ﬁ The seat has disintegrated and :hés been ‘removed.
There was one lady who came‘up’to me -- and I am not'making,this up --
and told‘me’that shé'had been‘skéwered on her séét. I aéked'hervwhat I
was to do about that,vand she said, "Well, 1 don't know." I éaid “I
can elther get the house manager or the doctor, dependlng on how you
want me to fix the problem " o But, it is a serious problem, and one
that is almost a health hazard in some cases. »
Regarding parking, it is absolutely essent1a1 that we have
~ safe parking.  At the Trenton War Memorial, we do havevsafe‘parklng,
but that is not true throughout the State. There is literally no food
service aEtached to.thesébhalls,vso you can't really enjoy the total
ambience of coming tota‘Cbncert.' Ifiyou,would really like to get into
the nitty-gritty, you- should come with me and visit some of the
dressing TOOmS. The.dréssing rooms are either boiling hot or freezing
cold, br tﬁey are allvcold, or they do not have lights, or the rest
rooms do- not work. In one facility, there is only one rest room, and
you must'expose youfself to get out of it. You open the door and get
up at the same time. - ‘ . |
' © These condltlons make it 1mp0331b1e for us to ask world-class
‘artists into this State. They 81mply will not come. Before Eugene
Ormandy died, ‘ﬁe séid "I owill never come into this State again with
"the Phlladelphlana,” because he had a Lerrlble experience at one of our
halls. - The orchestra pits are too small. “ You can't perform a
full-length ballet - with }Q members,‘and yet, Carolyn Clark does it all
the’timé.‘ You have to cut the70rChestrati0n down. - As Jerome Hines
said, "Instead of being second to none, we're second to everybody."
That condition must be changéd; ' o
' Because of these halls, wévcannot operate efficiently. Some.
halls are not air conditioned; ther=fore they cannot be used.in the
summer.‘ There are beveral halls which can hardly be used during the
very cold months of the year because the heating systems are just too

antiquated.
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| We're talklng about @  bill which has implications
nétionaliy. We have .an opportunlty here. 1 have been - in the arts
business for a long time. I was not ‘supposed to_speék on this issue,
but I am going to put my two cents in. The matching Lqu;rement is
essential to getting private individuals reianlvedk‘with ‘the ‘arts.':
 These facilities are essential so we can héveVpeoplé coming to arts .
affairs in their own‘State;tinstead:oF goingvto Philadelphia and New
York. - Look what héppened'to the Paper Mill when it was refurbishéd. 1
‘ think they went from 9, 000 subscribers to 31, 000 subscribers.

v My frlends, ‘that will happen all over the State when these
' facilities are fixed up. The matchlng requirement  is absolutely
essentlal, as is the panel of experts,'so that the money will be well
spent. That is my testimony, thank you. o ‘

; SENATOR LIPMAN: = Thank vyou vefy much, Mr. Hyer. Senator
Cardinale? , ‘ ' .
SENATOR CARDINALE: I have no quéstions, thank you.

SENATOR LIPMAN: Okay. ‘Senator Stockman? ‘ o

'SENATOR,-STOCKMAN: ~ John,. do your .performances pfesent'
themselves to a cross section 6f dur citizens? v S S

S MR. HYER: They certainly do. In fact, it i_s'an interesting

‘thing. ,‘Itdid not anticipate your asking this question, but I have
thought about it many times. In Newark Symphony Hall, for‘instanCe, we
hayébgréat, greatvnumbers from various ethnic backgrounds around. the
vCity of Newark. However, we are not able to attract the school systems
in the suburbs, “which: is intetesting, even though ‘the concertsv are-
free. So; you have SOft of a reverse situation'here.r'We are‘trying to
figure out a way, not only tobmake these various educational aspects of -
our operation -- the symphony -- available to inner-city children, but
we are also trying to find a way to get the suburban children to go
there rather than to New York, which is their custom rlght nNow.

So, the answer is, I think that. as far as the symphony is
concerned -- and I would also say deflnltely the tallet -- you have a
_ Very strong commitment and, indeed, involvement with a total cross '
section of this State. We also perform for the elderly at the Gérden

State Arts Center, and the Hispanic community. 1 believe we are doing
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about the best job of any symphony around when it comes to trying to
deal with the total. o o

1 also say this: Most of the time our pefformances are not
in the suburbs. We are talking about theaters that are right downtown:
- in Lakewood, in Trenton, in>Prihceton, at Symphony Hall in Newark, the
John Hérmé Englewood Pléza, and the William‘Carlos Williams Center.
These centers will assist'inpthe revitalization process like nothing
else you can think of. It isn't'going to be another glass tower in
Newark thét,makes a difference in society;v It will be someplace where
péople wiii‘say, "I had a good time,‘and 1 really feel better about
myself. I really feel I am worth something because I saw a performance
of ," whatever it might be, "at Symphony Hall." Those are the kinds of
experiences that kids remember, and I think that is kind of what we are
talking about. ; : v

| " SENATOR LIPMAN: Assemblywoman Ogden? |

ASSEMBLYWOMAN. OGDEN:  John, when we embark on revitalizing
the centers, will 90uf current school program continué with the breadth
it now has? - ’ ' ‘l

MR. HYER: I would think it would be‘gréater. With  the
“revitalization of the halls, new dollars will come in from all kinds of
quarters. I have seen it before in other places where I managed a
symphony orbhestra. That will spin‘offkihto greatef education programs
and different kinds of .education progréms, So, I think that not only
~will the commitment remain, but it will probably grow. Thank you.

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you;er. John Hyer  of the New Jersey
Symphony Orchestra. | ' .

1 understand there are some people “here with time
constraints. One of them is Ms. Gloria Buck, who is a Trustee of The
Newark Museum. Ms. Buck came all the way from Chicago to be here
today. ’ , o f
, GLORIA HOPKINS BUCK: = Thank you. Good afternoon, Senator Lipman and
members of the Committee. I am Gloria'Hopkiné Buck, and I serve és d
Trustee of The Newark Museum, and as‘Community Gifts Chairman of the
Museum's Development Campaign. I alsb serve on the Boards of the New
Jersey State Opera, the Boys'and'Girls Clubs of Newark, and the North
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Jersey Philharmonic Glee Club. 1 also volunteer as a public relations
 consultant and fund raiser for many arts, cultural, civic, and social
organizations. . ﬁ
As a result of my oactive involvement with these
organizations and my long residenoe as a citizen of Newark, I feel
hlghly qualified to stress to you today the 1mportance of art, and arts
' 1nst1tut10ns, in the lives of our communities. The arts provide
‘insight into one's history and culture, and 1nto ‘the hlstory and
- culture of all peoples. They‘are exciting, uplifting, and meaningful.

‘Whether sung, spoken, written, shaped, or drawn, the arts are a vital -

- and 51gn1f1cant part of the fabric of 1life.

I will take this opportunity. to talk about just a few of the
programs of The Newark Museum “as an example of a cultural
organization's involvement with .a community and,,‘what is more
important,»the»community's active support. of, and involVement'with,
~ this organization. ‘

The Newafk Museum was founded in 1909 by John Cotton Dana as
a museum of. art, science, and industry. Dana's unique philosophy
created’ a museum of active service to the ‘commUnity, through
~ exhibitions, programs, education,'and a lending collection. |

Today, The Newark Museum houses collectlons of paintings and
sculpture, oriental, ethnological, classical, and decorative arts, as
well as coins, currency, and science objects which, in many areas, have
achleved natlonal, and even international, recognition. -

However, The Newark Museum is -- as it always has beer --
more than JUSt a storehouse. Our annual attendance is nearly 350,000,
a figure which has doubled in the past 10 years, and which places us
twenty -third among art museums in the natlon, according to a recent
survey “of the Association of Art Museum Directors. Many of these

adults and children visit The Newark Museum to‘take‘part in the host of

outstanding public and educational - programs offered each year. o

According to the survey just»cited,‘The NewarkiMuseum ranks sixth in
the nation in terms of budget devoted to'educational,programs.
In 1984,  for example, 78,000 children and adults v131ted 1n

1,900 groups from Newark, Essex County, and throughout New Jersey
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These groups attended gu1ded tours by profe351onally-tra1ned Museum
docents, selecting 1n advance from our w1dely varied currlculum, whlch
includes New Jersey ecology, 11ve anlmals, African culture, arts. of
ancient Egypt, Vlctorlan 11festyles, bronze sculpture, electricity, and
computers. Hands-on workshops are also offered, in a varlety of arts7
and crafts fields. , TR

Junior Museum after- school and Saturday morning workshops,
for preschool through.hlgh school-aged children, are fully subscribed
‘ each year; In 1984, we had over 24,000 children attending these iively-
‘and educationally productive classes. Junior  Museum Gallery yisitors
totaled 66,000 -- young peoplé who learned about the culture of Japan
through a special hands-on exhlbltlon experience.

Adult arts. workshop students, 1 300 strong, part1c1pated in
classes ranging from papermaklng and basketryA to calllgraphy and
handwoten clothing, as well as painting and.scuipture.‘ The Planetarium
presented astronomy shows to 26,500 viewers of all ages. '

In addition, the Lending Department, using its unique
collection of over 25,000 objects, reached more than 124,000 Qiewers
statewide in classrooms and through community groups. |

Also, we have a very special Octoberfest for the handicapped,
and a fabulous Seniorstestival is offered each year. _

The Museum's exceptional collections provide the focal point
for fres public programs,'as well as those educational offerings just
mentioned. The Newark Museum's first exhibition to focus on the
achievements of Afro-American ‘artists was a 1931 Harnon Foundation
show. - The Museum is likewise no newcomer to the field of African:art,
having begun to acquire pieces‘ in the early 1920s. Tnese two
Cdllections9 as weli as special touring exhibitions, have_provided the
impetus for a host of activities. ' '

In 1981, The Museum initiated a eﬁurdinatedlseries.of Black

History Month programs, which The New York Times described as the major

observance of Black History Month in the entire metropolitan area.
Over 4&;000 peoplé‘haVe attended these gallery talks,,films, lectures,
and performances, geared . for family groups. During the past five

years, capacity audiences have heard such speakers as Nikki Giovanni,



Alex Haley, and Maya Ahgelou; seen performances by the Chuck Davis
Dance Company, Al Gallman's Dance Theater, Cissy - Housten énd ‘her
family, and -other noted cla331cal and jazz artists.’ \Currently,
"R tual and Ceremony in Afrlcan Life" is the stunning installation in
our Permanent African Gallery, one of the few permanent exhibitions The
 Museum is able to mount because of storage constralnts ‘and the fact
“that we do not have enough space to exhibit all of our possess1ons."1n
‘addition  to the Permanent African Gallery, we - have the
“TwentiethQCentury Afro-American Artists from the Collection.": They
- are both on view in the Painting and Sculpture Gallery. '

This fall, we will host an evening with the dean of  black
Amerlcan artlsts, Romare Bearden, as well as a seminal lecture series
with 'noted scholars presenting slide-talks on the history of
twentleth-century Afro-American art. '

The Newark Black Film. Festival, which I am very much a part
of, is another major program of fered by The Newark Museum, although due
to lack of sufficient sbaee on premises, it must be presented
elsewhere. = This six-week summer festival of “historical and
contemporary films featdring the history‘and culture of black people in
~Amer1ca ‘and elsewhere, is ha1led by critics as the longest running and
most slgnlflcant black fllm festival in the country. Our audience is
drawn from throughout New Jersey, as well as Manhattan, Staten Island,
and ' Rockland County. We have hosted such special quests as
photographers. Gordon Parks, James Van Der Zee, and -Roy DeCarava,
filmmakers Haile Geriﬁa, Gil Noble, Warrington . Hudlin, and Peul
‘Robeson, Jr. Over 2,400 people attended the opening of the festival's
eleventh season, a screening of "A SoldierYs Story" at Newark Symphony .
Hall. ; | E |

- Newark's major summer cultural event, the Black Film Festival
is administered entirely by 'The Newark Museum,‘and ls presented with
the aid of our co-sponsoring organizations with funding from the New
Jefsey State Council on the Arts and‘the Johnson &‘Johnson Family of
Companies Contribution Fund. Almost 31,000 adults and chlldren have
screened over 180 films at the festival to date.
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The burgeoning‘attendance‘at these and many other programs
vclearly 1nd1cates that The . ‘Newark Museum has outgrown its current'
gallery and program space. Too often we,are unable to accommodate
people who wish to attend programs, or whofwieh‘to'see.treasures from
the collection‘for which there is‘ho roomloo’the'gallery walls. The
completion ' of 'our' Demelopment' Campaigh will enable us to build
permahent galleries; and to build an auditorium where we can continue
to expand our orogram offerings. I urge you to seriously consider the
enormous p031t1ve impact of the passage of 5-2624, allocatlng funds for
the cultural centers of ~our ‘State, and 1ts effect on improving the
quality of life throughout the State. .

' Thank you for your tlme and attentlon.f

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank you vvery “much for your inspiring
presentation. Senator Cardinale, do‘you have a question?

» SENATOR - CARDINALE: No, Madam Chairman, I think the
presentation was very clear. ' | ' o v
 SENATOR LIPMAN: Assemblywoman Ogden?

ASSEMBL YWOMAN OGDEN: I have no-questions. 4

SENATOR LIPMAN: Thank»yovaery much, Gloria, for coming all
 the way here. ‘ - o : |

MS. BUCK: It was a pleasure;'it‘Was‘worth‘it.‘ I would like
to ask -the Committee to callr upon Lyhne Kramer and Dr. Penelope
Lattlmer because of their time constralnts. ' |

SENATOR LIPMAN: Yes, 1 have a note about that Would Ms.
Lynne Kramer, Director,- Project Impact, Rldgewood, and Dr. Penelope
Lattimer, Assistant Superlntendent of = Schools, New Brunswick and
President, Board of Trustees,: Crossroads Theater Company, please come
foruard? Senator Haines is returnlng,to our hearing now. Okay, Ms.
Kramer. ' | o '

LYNNE KRAMER: Thank you for your tindulgence, Madam Chairman and -
members of - the Committee, I am here to testify in famor of A-3031
and S-2624, the arts fa0111ty fundlng bills sponsored by Assemblywoman
OGgden and Senator Stockman. My credentlals appear in the thumbnall bio

I have giVen»you, so I will not take time for that.
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I was thlnklng about thls testlmony, and I realized that 20
years ago when I moved to New Jersey and ‘planned to continue my career |
as producer and director of theater for young people, I scouted the
’ State high ard low for profeqs1onal performlng fac1llt1es to'
, effectlvely house productlons of major theater, musxc, and dance~

events. 1 was shocked to find so few, and what were available were

inadequately maintained and equipped. I had planned to bring to

keeveral regions- in the State major companies such as the Metropolitan

Opera's National Touring Company, which was available at that time; the
famed Bolshoi‘Ballet, which was on the way back to Russia;'but had a
few days to spend in New Jersey, the New York City- Ballet, and a
production of England's Royal Shakespeare Company. However;ithere was
no theater that could properly,and.appropriately meet the technical
'requirements that companies of this major size and importance needed.

_ It was embarra331ng and unfitting for these great artlsts to
have to perform in high school aud1tor1ums w1th 1nadequate stages, no ‘
technical facilities, and with the acoustles of an echo chamber and,
»eVen worse; to try to fit these perfornances into a college gym turned g
theater. This atmosphere does not attract ticket buyers, nor does the
limitation of stag1ng permit the maglc of the art form to be revealed

.That ‘was 20 years ago. vHopefully, some changes have taken
place as a result of a great:deal ot effort on the part of an active
New Jersey arts community. |

_ But, I now look around, and I'am still dismayed. Although 1
see,many»more per formances and visual arts facilities,'the scene is not’
that mueh improved. Most are inj disrepair, in varying stages of
construction, or still in need of refurbishing,?; all’activitieS'leWed‘
or halted by the continuing lack of you know what -- yep, enough funds
and enough of a commitment from the State to properly present the arts
with their right ful glamour and maglc. )

As we see in neighboring cities, i.e., Philadelphia,,which ‘
just hosted a highly financially and artistically - successful
international festival of theater, dance, and music for young’people at
the Annenberg Center, or in Albany, where an 1ncred1ble selection of

nationally and 1nternat1onally renowned artlsts perform in a great
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vfaciiity,'-thev-beaQty~ and special embience‘uef ethesel_facilities draw
school'andeedﬁlh'eediences not only because they are assured of an
interesting taste of the arts, but because'of the interesting sites
'themselves; . Nithoﬁt7questior,'this draws audiences.  An ettractive
env;ronment 1s all part of the ulamour,' excitement, and- 1earhihg,
experlence that 1s live theater. o ' -

v PrOJect Impact, of which I _am proud to be the Dlrector, has
been brlnglng into the schools throughout New Jersey, theater, dance,
’mu31c, mime  -- all of the perfqrmlng arts -- to young audiences for a
great mahy years, 20 to be speeific,, We have provided students with a
. taste for. the arts and an awareness of the :joy and pleasure"of
,atpending exciting performanCes. Now that we have turned them on,
Where are theyvto go? 1 have been worklng on a package, for example,
to brlng in a great touring company, the Kaze-no-ko Mime Company, from
Jepan, and, the famous Moscow Music Theater for Children with
Bolshoi-trained ballet dancers.  These programs are 901ng to be
appearing in‘Albahy. I want desperately for the young people in thls
 State to be able to see them, but it 13A1mposslble. Where are the
facilities to accommodate these productions for ’inner-eity, rural
~ audiences and, for that matter, even ‘the 1arger suburban aud1ences7
Where can these programs be produced7

People have what I call "sand in their shoes." :Once home,
audiencee areenot anx1eus to leave the television. If they.doileave
home, movie theaters are so much more aeeessible, with better parking,

and»clOSer to their homes. Unless we begih to refurbish, rebuild, and

" - construct new theaters'end local visual arts facilities now -~ right

now —- we will certalnly lose what little new arts consumers we have
generated to date. _ ’

1 have said nothlng about cost—effectlvensss or how arts
facilities stimulate the economy of an area. I shall leave that to my
colleaguee, But, in passing, I remind you that student audiences are
alsoc an important economic wmarket. | | o ,

‘ I have traveled across the cbuhtry and to many parts of the
‘world, including a recent visit to Moscow and Leningrad, in an effort

- to see what others are doing fer ‘young audiences in each art
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',discipline.’ Each time I return home green w1th envy when I see the
many magnificent theaters, concert halls, and: art ‘museums -in places
like Birmingham, Alabama, Louisville, Kentucky, Mlnneapolls, Mlnnesota,v
New Urleans, Loulslana, and Honolulu, Hawati. These facilities are
“handsomely designed and are seeded with state and mun1c1pal funds. Why
‘ aren't we making that contribution? SR

It is my experience that quality fac111t1es, metlculously
maintained, instill in young v1ew1ng audlences ‘8’ sense of both pride
and ‘partic1pat10n in- the presntatlon of #scultural events and
- performances.v Also unquestlonably, this exposure to live performances
in ant‘aesthetlcally pleasing ' atmosphere broadens and deepens a
‘student's total education. s » ‘ | |

‘ As adults, we . must prov1de these facllltles from both our

“sense of respon31b111ty and our sense of prlﬂeﬁln the State of New

Jersey. Thank you. _ EREN S N
SENATUR STOCKMAN:  Thank you very much, ' Ms. Kramer. -~ Senator
“Lipman had to leave very briefly, but she will be back shortly. I know

you have Dr. Penelope Lattimer w1th you. Dr. Lattlmer, I believe you
would like to speak next. : : v , o
DR. PENELOPE E. LATTIMER: Good afternoon. Mytinterest in supporting
both Assembly Bill 3031 and Senate Bill 2624 is:multi-faeeted. First,

let me speak as an educator. The incorporation of the arts in

: educatlon is a legitimate and hlghly respecteduaspect of our State s

responsibility to develop the whole child. ‘Indeed, 1 and others _‘

believe that unless an individual is exposed to a wide variety of
performing arts mediums, he or she is not an educated person, merely a
schooled one. | .

It is woefullyi inadequate to confine learners"to school
. buildings and school auditoriums for their ’expdsure' to the arts.
Students' environments must be broadened and their educational grooming
must include opportunities tobstudy and to view artistic presentations
in their proper setting. A cultural centew, or centers, would‘provide
the proper setting. Having such a facility in this State would make it
economically feasible for boards of education to support extended
learning opportunities, to sponsor student/teacher attendance - at

professional performances, and studio work for students and teachers.
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. Another prime attraction is the ability to public1y showcaseﬂ
the. outstandlng work of students and teachers. Educators,”students,
and parents throughout New Jersey have hungered for a cultural center.
I remember twlce_,part1c1pat1ng in a Summer Arts Irstitute for
teachers.' Eachr year, this Instltute that attracted and employed-
preStigious; fine;'performlng. artlsts ‘to  work “with outstandlng
educators;a3was “housed at 'Sandy Hook‘vState"lPark in 'makeshift
facilities. These 1nadequate fac111t1es hindered the part1c1pants from”
reachlng their full potential. Certalnly, the final performances were
not nearly as effectlve as they could have been had they been. presented
in an approprlate, profe331onal settlng. B ,

- The development of a cultural center will enhance educatlonal
opportunlt;es in a myriad of ways to complement dally,experlences of
learning. ~For instanoe, the fine arts areafcould include a children's
museum, where young'people could view the work of their peers and where
‘they could touch and construct art obgects. The Artist’in Residence
Program can be expanded to a level that ‘would exceed what any 31ngle
district would ever be able to afford. Young playwrlghts' forums could.
be increased in'number and a professionalparena to present the work of
young lplaywrights would exist.  Dance and music would ’thrive ‘and
flourish because students and performers would: have studios and stages
to meet, to move, to create. Currently, little 'is offered to New
~Jersey's outstandlng young artists to permlt thelr artlstlc giftedness
to flourish in their home State.

‘In 1958, when I was 11 years old I‘wasﬂreleased from public
school at noontlme three times per week. Each afternoon I traveled to
New York City to the bchool of Amerlcan Ballet to pursue my tralnlng in
classical ballet with students frem the Performlng Arts High School in
Manhattan. Frequently we performed thh the New York City Ballet‘
Company. This continued for many years. I was fortunate because my
school distrlct accepted my parents' petltxon for early release. How
~do tooay's students cope?'lThere—exlst few opportunltles._ .
From its inception, I'have~been-a_member'of‘the‘Board'of
- Directors of the Middlesex County Arts High School.- This program, the

Summer Arts Institute, and the New Jersey Teen ‘Arts Festlval each
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>satlsf1es a need of the artlstlcally glfted chlldren around this rlchly
unique State. Each of these programs struggles annually to contlnue.'
One part of their struggle is space. They, too, need a profe881onally |
- equipped environment in which to Fleuriah. They also need  funding
'enough to offer scholarships. ~As trite as it may seund today's
~student is tomorrow s audience and tomorrow's sponsor of the arts. The
grooming process begins’ by stimulating in school-age children a
'lifelong interest in the arts as a means of lelsure-tlme enjoyment.
Now let me speak as President of the Board,of Directors of
‘the Crossroads Theater Company;‘ Uniquely one of only a handful of
_ professional black theater companies in the nation, Crossroads selected
New Brunswiek as its home base. For seven seasons, Crossroads has been
proclaimed for outstanding artistic achievement, and Yet this reeord is,
being forged from a facility that is extremelY'humble. While we are
grateful to have what we have, we need and desire more. -
Some years ago, the announcement of a cultural center for the
‘ State to be established in New Brunsw1ck was welcomed with glee and
'great anticipation, At the head of the cheerlng line ‘were - the
‘executive directors, artistic directors, and board members of area
organizations. Everyone was willing to coOperate for success. The
business of prodneing the cultural center has moved very slowly, so
elowly, unfortunately, thatvaomeva:ts erganizationa have closed their :
doors in the interim. This is sad and threatening. 1. can't help but
‘think had the cultural center been a reality, business would have been:
better. : |
» The Crossroads Theater‘Company, the George Street Playhouse,’
the Princeton Ballet Company, the New Jersey Symphonic Orchestra,. the
Opera Theater of New Jersey, the New Jefsey Designer Craftsmen, and the
Mason Gross School of the Arts are all professional performing groups
located in the greater New Brunswick area. Other prestigious .
organizations brlng cultural enrichment and entertalnment to our State ,
from other locations. - Each has made a commitment to enrich the quallt)
of life for all New Jerseyans. What is needed now is a profe831onally

equipped house from which to operate -- a cultural center. Thank you.
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SENATOR STUCKMAN- - Thank you very much, Dr. Lattlmer.v Are

there any . questions from the Commlttee members? (negative response)
All right, thank you, Dr. Lattimer. ' - |
o Our  next speaker will be Dr.‘ David Listokin, Rutgers
Unlver31ty Center for Urban Pollcy Research. ' ' .
'DR. 'DAVID LISTOKIN' I appre01ate the opportunlty of coming here today
‘ and, with the Committee' s 1ndulgence, I will be brief ‘and summarize the
' f;nd;ngsvof a‘study I,conducted.‘ Th;s studyrwas conducted by the:
V Rutgers University Center for,Urban,Polioy,Research, You should have a
copy in front of you of‘an‘ExecutivelSummary'titled, "TherEconomiC‘
Impact of the'New BrunswickbArts.“ vaould*likevtotjust refer -to that
and hlghllght some of the f1nd1ngs. -

If you look at Exhibit 1 on Page 2 of the Executive Summary--'
You have JUSt heard about some of the cultural serv1ces belng prov1ded'
in New Brunswick, and what 1 would llke to do is ‘give a dollars and
cents perspective of what that means to the revltalrzatlon of the
City. Currently -- and this was dollars as of 1983 - the George
Street Playhouse, Princeton Ballet, and Crossroads Theater had a total
expendlture, or budget, of approxlmately $1.4 million and hired
approximately 70 people. On top of thatvlmmedlate impact, there were
expenditures by guest performers for lodging and food'of approximately
$55,000. More significant -- and I will return to this in a moment --
was reallyithe audience, who they were and what they’were doing. As of
1983, the George Steet Playhouse, the Prlnceton Ballet, and CrossroadS'
attracted an audlence of 65, 000 thls has ‘expanded and will continue to
~expand. They expended, for food and retall goods, over $200,000. If
you look at the economic flow of the budgetary expendltures, “the
spending by the guest artlsts, and the’ spendlng by the audience,. there
was a bottom—llne economlc_beneflt_of approx1mately $1.6 million.

v Thisiis projeoted to expand considerably due to a number of
factors. vFirst,- the tdivisional.”inStitutions -- the ”George Street
Playhouse, the Princeton Ballet, and Crossroads -- will Vexpand
themselves, and you also have the entree of an important new player,

- the New Brunswlck Cultural Center, whlch wlll increase the bottom-line
dollar benefit in spending w1th1n the C1ty from the $1 6 mllllon I

26



mentioned to- almoét'$4 million. = The employmént of the different arts
1nst1tut10ns will also expand. » |

It is more than Just dollars when you are talklng about the
economic connection between art and cities. If you look at Page 11 of
- the  Executive Summary, Exhibit 3A, what we did was examine the:
» residences of the arts audience.._Whefe dd'the pedple'live who are :
coming to New Brunswick to George Street, Crossroads, or the Princeton :
Ballet? We found'that'approximately tWo-thirds‘live in the greater New
‘Brunswick area —-lthatfstew Brunswick'and surrouhdihg»commuhities -
but there was service to the entire State. There wasbavthird coming
from outside the larger New Bfunswiék area. There was approximately 8%
from the Trenton area; another 8% from the Red Bank area. Again, there
was service throughout the State and, I might also add, service outside
the Staté, people coming from many locations to the different cultural
performances in New Brunswick.

It is not just where they are coming from which-is 1mportant
-- you . are attracting people to a city, which is key to
reVitalization -- it is who thése people are. We found that the
audiencé-attending these arts facilities were people who, fof the most
part, would never come to New Brunswick; they would not be shopping
“there and they would.not be dining there. So, we were bringing in a
group which wasi less urban. Théy were suburbanites who were not
shopping or eating in the City, yet because of this extra local
attraction of arts, they were returning to New Brunswick. -

| This group not only was not there, which was ihportant, they

were 'really a marketeer's dream. For the most part;‘ they were
affluent.'_ I might add that the audience béing served was not
necessarily éffluent; there was a cross section of income and a cross
séction,of race. .However, I think key to the connection between arts
and cities -- and it is not necessarily cities, it is older suburban
areas -- 1is that where most activities in the City have decentralized,
such as shoppihg is now.in malls, on strip centers, and so on, arts,
for the most part,’ are concentrated in cities' and blder» suburban
areas. I think it is going to be a key measure to the révitalization
of these areas if we can revitalize the arts. Those were the findings

of the New Brunswick survey.
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I mlght also add that a few years ago we looked at the
economic proflle of Englewood. We 1ooked at how that C1ty could be
revitalized. We looked at the proflle~of the John Harms audience, and
we found a Similar connection. - John Harms was attracting people to

lEnglewood who basically would tnot“be ’coming:‘to that City; - Once
: attracting these people, the cities can now focus on improVing their
retail businesses and improving their d1n1ng ‘facilities to foster their
rev1tallzat10n. Thank you. ' } v
- SENATOR STOCKMAN: ° Thenk you very much, Dr, Listokin. I
think that was very 1mportant testimony on thls 1mp0rtant study, and it
will be very helpful as this leglslatlon is  further debated and,
‘hopefully, voted on soon. Do  the Committee members. ~have any
questions? (negative reeponse) Thank ydu very much, o

Qur next witness will be Erik Sletteland.

ERIK SLETTELAND: - My name is Erik Sletteland. I am currently employed
by. ‘Mahony  Troast Constrdction Company as a Regional Sales
‘Representetive., I am here today to discuss the following issdes:

1)-  The economic stimulation band employment opportunities
that would be realized by the. commencement of constructlon on these
progettsg : :

2) The substantial penaltieé that would accrue due to their
postponement or the inability to complete these building programs in
their entirety.

Although what I am about to say would.pertain to all the
institutions eohtemplating constructiom, to illustrate my peint, I will
use, as examples, the William CarlostWilliams Center and The Newark
Museum, for whom we are currently retained as Construction Managers.
But, first 1 4would like tet make btwo comments. withv regard . to
construction in general:

1) The cost of construction rises at a rate of between 5%
and 5-1/2% annually, which means that the cost of completlng the
‘capital development plans of all 25 cultural centers listed on the Arts
Council survey alone3 is increasing at a rate of $12,143,900 per year.

2) On a mofe encoutraging note, hqwever, 50% of all

construction dollars are psid out in wages, while the remaining 50% is
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spent on the purchsing of materials, which further stimulates lecal and
State economies. | A o
It is estimated that The Newark Museum expansion program will

create apnroximately‘ 115 jobs for a duretion of approximately” one
year, while the William Carlos Williams Center w1ll create an average
of 40 jobs for a duration of approx1mately eight months.

' v In the case of The Newark Museum and the Williamj,Carlos
Williams Center, the -ebility ‘to reaiize' the - completion of their
construction programs in one project would eliminate the substantial
penalties  associated with construction phasing, as well ‘as
»substahtially reduce the disruptioh to their ‘continuing’ operations
during this period. It is estimated that the amohnt of . temporary
construction and prdtectiOn needed to secure these areae‘during their
renovation, the 1oss' in buying power and mahpower associated with
>phasing, and the constant duplicity of effort, result. in a cost
_ 1ncrease of between 25% and 30%. |
For example, the construction expense necessary to. obtaln a
. temporary Certlflcate of Occupancy for the Rivoli Theater .1nvithe
William Carlos Williams Center was estimated at $188,000,”$136,100 0f 
which was for permanent improvements,‘ while $51,900, or 28%, was
temporary. = When  the project advances to the next phase,ba further
amount of time and money will be lost in the removal of these temporary
,impfovements. The ability to complete this project in its entirety
would have allowed those funds to be directed toward permanent
improvements, thus substantially redueing the project's overall cost.
To give you another example of the rising costs . of design and
'construction, in 1978 it was estimated that to eomelete the Williams
Center in its entirety would be $3.5 million. Today, it will cost $3.5
millionb to complete the renovation of the Rivoli Theater alone.
However, when this restoration is completed, the citizens of New Jersey
will have at their disposal a facility which the League of Historic
Ahericans Theaters estimates would cost between $18 million and $20
mllllon in new construction dollars to duplicate.

-Each of these institution's capltal campaigns is a challenge,

but it is also an opportunity. The realization of these projects opens
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up a world of vposéibiiitiés; ‘'a chance to  entertain, and, more
.'importently; educate; anfonportunity to celebrate and explore what - has
been created, and to .inspife land challenge those “who will create.
Through my’perecnal'inVolvement with botthhe‘Newark Museum and the
‘William Carlos Williams Center, as weli.asyothervéulturaldinstitutions
throughout the'State, I know’this chéllenge is being met. 1 .ask that
your Commlttee do all in its power to assist these 1nst1tut10ns in this
-most vital, worthwhile effort. Thank you. : ' .

| SENATOR STOCKMAN' Thank you - for your testimony, Mr,
Sletteland. - Do any of the Commlttee members have any quest10ns7
~(negative response) Thank you again, o ‘

Our next speakers w1ll be Don Streibig and'ViCky Hardy.
iDONALD R. STREIBIG° Thank- you very much 1 bring you greetings from
the Chalrman of . the New Brunsw1ck Cultural Center, Mr. Richard Sellers,
who was here earller, but who had :to leave for another business
“appointment. He would also have.sppken'to the question of economic
~ development. v o .

‘ HOwever, I wddld'likevto speak to thevtheme we have here
before usj that is, the challenge of thls pendlng leglslatlon which we
think will be met and more than doubled and returned to the citizens of
the Garden State.

In 1977, as manageryof the historic Ohio Theater in Columbus,
we applied for and received-atNatiOnal Endewment’for the Arts Challenge
Grant in their first do_éround."At,that time, it was considered an
‘experiment df'great daring becadse,nd one really khew what the arts
community could 'doe by raising Funds in response to this Federal
program. The response was most impressive, so much so' that the
National Endowment Challenge Grant Program was extended beyond its
}eriginal'thfee—yeer trial period, and is now about to award its ninth
‘rbund of grant awards;'lAt the national level, they'require a minimum
‘match of'$3.001in new or increased contributions from private and local
‘sources during a three-year fund-raising period for each Federal grant
dollar. It is a 'threertto‘ one match. Chairman of the NEA, Frank
Hodsoll; rECently _repdrtedV that challenge grant trecipiente have
ekdeeded all expectations by’generating far beyond the requirment and

far beyond anything ever anticipated.
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- The National Endonent sees itself «as. sortv of a junior
partner, and successfully uses the Challenge Grant Program to-focus
attention on the needs of the great arts institutions‘and,on the vital
role they play in our communities. ‘

The Challenge Grant  Program at the National Endowment is
separate from their regular grants program and, as - 1 understand it,
the ‘bill in New Jersey will be the same.. It will be separate from what
the State Arts Council appropriates for programlng purposes. That is .
~ exactly what we hope to see happen here in New Jersey. Its purpose is
designed to help achieve a stronger, broader, and more reliable funding-
base and- to encourage greater citizen participation in developing
commonity programs and facilities. Back in Ohio,-that is exactly what
happened. We received a $300,000 grant from the National Endowment ,
and it was a great catalyst to our local efforts to renovate an old
movie palace, which, by the way, was designed by:the same architect who
designed the State Theater in New Brunswick, the Strand Theater in
Lakewood, and the Community Theater in Morristown. He was everywhere.
- We turned it into the leadingvshOWplace of the Midwest. The_citiiens
of Columbus -- and by that I mean senior citizens, students, and
- children, as well as banks, corporations, ‘and foundations --
~contributed more than $5° million, in response to this $300 000 gift, to
our bricks and mortar cause.

Historically, the NEA ‘Challenge Grant has served as a
catalyst for generating an average of more than $7.00 in non-Federal
matching dollars for every Federal dollar awarded. My colleagues and I
representing; arts facilities about this State foresee a similar
1mpre551ve response to the legislation now proposed.

You can't imagine what an impact it has upon a local arts
lgroup'trying to get the wheels in action to save the old Bijou, to be
chosen by a select panel of peer artists and government leaders. It
gives great credibility to the local project. Its endorsement is a
great incentive for othzsrs to contribute to the cause. In a very
competitive field, this subsidy willbkeep oor artistic levels high and,

- certainly, our accountability to our constituents better focused.
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In’short the National Endowment Challenge Grant theory -
and the philosophy behind it -- works. We hope you understand our
needs and will let us show you how we éan make it nork for1the arts

“facilities of New Jersey. R ' ‘

My friend to my right, Victoria Hardy, cu:rentlyv Ménaging

Director of the:WilliamvCarlosvWilliamstenter, was a consultant to the
National Endowment for two -years, serVing‘nnvthe‘peer panéi review of
‘ the~National»EndOWment.‘ She has'some:added-insights from'being'on the
' side of the question that debated who should be the recipients.
VICTORIA HARDY: Thank you. 1 appreciate the opportunity to testify
before thls Committee. I will keep my remarks brief.
' I am Executive Director of the W1lliam Carlos Williams Center.
in Rutherford. Prior to this, I spent 51x years at Stanford University
in California as Director of their Profe3310nal Performing Arts
Programs there. 7 o , ,

I bring‘you greetings from a theater that has no seats and no
plaster. We are not even workingion'the seats and plaster; we don't
have any left. However, we have over $5 million worth of construction ,

that has already been completed, so we are a half-finished project that
is working to pull off the rest of it. '

Although we have a facility w1th no seats and no plaster, it
has been- rented by a theater company for the entire summer to perform
in because they are that desperate for space in the northern New Jersey
area. 1 speak to you as a member of a group, the Challenge Grant Panel
from the National Endowment for the. Arts. I think the comments
reéently made by the Cochairman of the President's Commission on the
Arts and - ‘Humanities about the effectiyeness of estéblishing a. program
that develops a- match, said it all.  He said, in a recent publication
of the Arts Magazine, "I am frank to say that the National Endowment
for the Arts matching grant is the crown jewel in fund-raising devices
I have ever known. People have an innate desire to match the grant,
andvitvis élmostfalways accomplished. = The grants mustloften be new
money. - The peqplé”'who’_make them 'aimostu‘invariably become active,
continuing supporters“df the institution Which they have*helped, The

people go on to attend perfofmances"Or exhibitions, and become



,volqntéers and board members. It is a ciassié?example of widening the
base. The Endowment does its best agd it is amazing hdw citizens
respond when they have to." _ v

~ Having come from ‘a ‘situation where the Williams Center
experienced a number of ‘financial problems in trying to estabiish
" itself and restore its faciiitiea,'and which has raised over a million
and a half dollars in the last 22 months fromltheiﬁbrthérn New Jersey
area, I am here to telI'you that a Chailengejﬁrant Prog:am works.
There is money out there to be raised for our ragional facilities. ‘
, ‘ If there are any questiohs from EhevCommittee about that
process, I would be happy to answer them. ' o

' SENATOR STOCKMAN:  Thank you very much. Do any of the

Committee members have any questic:.ns'7 (negative:response)

What about. the matchlng grant proposal: in this legislation?
Do you have any suggestions about the ratio? :

MS. HARDY: I think the proposed ameﬁﬁment, which would give
us a stronger incentive for the private sector by matching private
dollars one to one and public dollars two to one,.is excellent because,
you know, I think we want to gehefate as much involvement from the
private sector asvwe can, and to be able to go to them with a strong
reason for giving us money is the best reason you can give me.

SENATOR  STOCKMAN: ~ Thank you very muﬁh;»Ms; Hardy and Mr.
Streibig. Is Floyd Bragg here? (affirmative response) Mr. Bragg is
Chairman of the Board of Governors of Rutgers University.

FLOYD BRAGG: Thank you very much, Senators and Assemblywoman Ogden. 1
don't want to appear under false credentials. It's true that I am
vChalrman of  the Board of Governors of Rutgers Un1ver81ty, but I am .
really here because I was the Chairman of the Board of the_Paper'Mill
Piayhouae during its critical years and, also,vaéhairperson of its
fund-raising campaign to rebuild‘the Paper Mill,Playhouse. 

| I am really here to tell you a success story, and to tell
you, as one of my friends would say, "You donefgoda’wbrk,"'oecause‘the
‘Governors of this State, the legislative members of this State, and the
legislative 1eaders had the fore51ght to be supportlve of the Paper
Mlll Playhouse.
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Let me flrst speak for Sonny Nerblln, who was here but who

o had to leave for another app01ntment.x He wanted toﬁmake a few comments

about why he thought this bill was ‘appropriate and should”bef
supported.  He wanted to draw an analogy between the Meadowlands
project and the arts in the State. He sald "If we look at the |
Meadowlahds now,“we know what it has dbne. It has done a lot for the
economy of the State; it has contributed to our people's prlde 1n the
State; it has.made New Jersey a more attractlve_place for bu31nesses to
establish themselves; and, it has helped to create an attractive
economic climate in the State.“, He just wanted to draw that analogy
because he thinks the arts can do the same thlng for the State that the
Meadowlands did in the sports area. :

Let me take ‘'you back to January, 1980, when the Paper M111
Playhouse burned to the ground. I had just come on board a month
before. Some of my friends wondered if I had had anything to do with
it. 'But, it was true that it was an arscnist who set fire‘tp the Paper
Mill Playhouse. Listehingvto John Hyer, 1 could ohly wonder about some
of the other faeilities in the State which we think are in, you know,'
reasonable condition, Could they also burn to the ground?
Fortunately, when the Paper Mill burred, it was during the day and
there was no one there.

SENATOR - STOCKMAN: Don't give anybody any ideas now, Mr.
Bragg. | | | ' |
~ MR. BRAGG: I know. When we first met -- and Assemblywoman
Ugden can go back to those deye with me -- the Board didn't know
whethet we should rebuild. We didn't know ‘whether we could raise the
money to rebuild because the,Paper'Mill‘Playhouse had no experience in
raising money. This was a eritical.issuen Governor Byrne and the
legislative leaders of the State said, “We think you should rebuild,
and we want to support you." In thoae times, money was rather tight.
‘You know, we didn't have surpluses like we do today. So, there was
nowhere to go for the money byt to a line appropriation.

In September, 1980, we receivedb,SBSD,OOU from the State.
That was the basis_ah which we recruited people to raise money. We

lost some Board members, who said, "We don't want to raise money; we
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don't think we can do it." Maureen can tell you. We had $1 million
worth oftinsurance, which wae'aboutiall the;ihsurance youtcou1d‘get_on
a building of that age. From that small beginning, 77 corporatione; 26
‘foundatlons, the National Endowment for the Arts, and over 3,000
: prlyate 1nd1v1duals came forward. We raised“$3.5‘milllon.v We also had
to borrow from the.New Jersey Economic Development Authority. We still
carry a debt of $1'million, and perhaps no theater‘Orbarteforganization
can really carry a debt because you can't make it at the box office as
“a nonprofit organlzatlon. ‘ B ‘ ‘

We were very successful. . We raised 9D% of"our'budget from
the - box office,"which meane,that we haVevtO‘raiae'only another 10%'from
-gifts, but that is unusual;i Most theaterse- Well, the median of -all
. theaters ‘across the country 1s 65%. That giveSkyouisome idea; v

Now, what's happen1ng° Why has this been a succees? Those
of you‘who have been in it have seen that we”haye built a first-class
theater. Dur operating budget has grown from $1 6 million before the;
.fire_to>$6 3 million at present. So, you cansee, as some of the other ;
‘speakers have talked about, the‘economlc impact of’success, Our annualf
‘attendance “has grown from 200,000 to,»&OO,GOO,J'probably:,the largest
attendance of any theater in the State. AUUr‘rnumber of season
subscribers has' grown from 6, 000 to 33, 000. That:is the largest number
of season subscribers anywhere in the country.J;Again, someone talked
about when peOpie' give money, they get 1nvolved they tell their
frlends, and they help to sell tickets. \ ‘

R ‘ Our children's attendance -- and I think this 1is partlcularly
‘important’ -- has grown from 45 000 to 60 000. . These are children, by
-and laroe, who are bused in from the school systems in New Jersey,
~ from further south than New Brunswick up ‘to Bergen County. * There are
large numbers comlng from Newark East Orange, Drange, and all of the
urban areas. ' ‘ ) ‘

So, 1 think we have had‘ a very positive impact on the
/economy. We have had a p051t1ve impact on the quality of life in the
area. “We have had a positive impact on educational values. Then
agaln, 1 think we are beglnnlng to have a natlonal 1mpact that raises

- New Jersey s recognltlon across the country. Our shows, by and large,

35



are produced andbcast by the Paper Mill. They are not stock shdws
brought/in from somewhere else. One of oﬁr-shows,'“You Can't Take It |
With You,"™ went on to Kennedy Cénter, then on to Broadway, and is
“currently being seen on Cable television. That is bringiné national
recognltlon to the Paper Mill Playhouse and to the State because the‘
‘credit lines show that. We are getting more and more inquiries from
regional theaters across the country regarding p1ck1ng up our shows
after we produce them..' N 4 ' '

| I think this is a success story of’whétvhappens when the
State.chés'forward, as it did with three line appropriatiohs amount ing
td‘$650,000 for the Paper Mill Playhouse rebuilding project. It gave
us the inspiration to faise the money, and I think a métching gift
program, where the money is avallable .up front, will enable‘ other
~ institutions to do 31mllar things. '

"Thank you all very much for being patlent and for llstenlng.
You have great staying. power, I must say.

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Thank you very much Mr. Bragg. That is
qu1te a success story, and it was very 1nterest1ng to hear about it.
Do any of the Committee members have any questions of Mr. Bragg?
(negative response) Thanks égain for - joining us and contributing to
the record. ‘ '

May we have Dr. Clement Price, Chairman of the New Jersey
State{Council on the Arts. Clement, how are you? It's nice to see
you. | . | : . -

DR. CLEMENT PRICE: I'm fine, thank you, Senator; Good afternoon. It
is my pleasﬁré to appeaf‘before this Committee as Chairman of the Arts
Council. Let me also state for the record that I have the greét‘honor
of serving as First Vice Chairman of the National Assembly of Sﬁates‘
Arts Agencies. _

Recently, I had the distinct honor of appearing before a
House Select Subcommittee on Higher Education. That Committee, as some
of you might know, is charged with the responsibility of reauthorizing
the National Endowment for the Arts. 1 bring this testimony just
briefly to your attention because it is part of a string of Very
interesting developments that I have been a part of as Chairman of the
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Arts Council. Last year, Frank Hodsol1 visited this State for the
| first time. Most recently, Anthony Turny;,- also from the National
Endowment . for the Arts, appeared at an Arts Council meeting. New
~ Jersey, it seems, ~is very much being watched by our sister statés 
across this greatalahd; ‘When I’joihed'the>Couhcil in'1979, however,
 this was simply not the case. New Jersey was popularly referred to as
"an artistic cultural wasteland." An early twentieth century novelist
once wrote, "If you want‘to stay at home,,you should live in Newark." _

With few exceptions,‘just‘a few years ago, arts organizations .
throughout - the State did not have national or regional  distinctions.
Much has changed. Through the»leadefship of this Legislature and the
Governor, the Arts Council's budgét has been dramatically increased.
This year we are boming in at $8.6;million.' Critical to this arts
development, of course, are arts groups and a:tists themselves. Most
arts organizatiohs that' are funded by 'the“Arts Council are
systematically involved 1in audience deveibpment and systematiéally
involved'in bbérd development. Many of the stronger arts organizations
have brought - computers on to assist them in this kind of work.
There is coalition building. ~ You may know that some months ago,
hundreds of our neighbors and friends. aséembléd here in Trenton in
v support of the legislation which is before this Committee, and ih'
sUpportvof an increase for the Arts Council's bUdget.' 1 should add
that most arts organizations throughout the State, in keeping with arts
organizations across the United States, are involved in 1ong-range
planning. : | | :
' However, at the same timé, there has been ‘an obvious problem
with réspect to the most important link in arts development, and that
is, of course; the issue I would 1like to Jjust. -briefly draw your
attention'to'égain; I think all of the platitudes. have been sfated, -
all of the statistics have been given, you ‘have heard 'considerablé,
testimony, énd there is other testimony coming after mine. But>it is
very ihportant to undérstand the critical link in arts development,
which seems to me would be facilities that enable artists to ﬁerform
and audiences to enjoy the arts in an aesthetically physically
- appealing environment, and this is woefully lacking in the State of Newv'f

Jersey.
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I was just remlnded by my: dear frlend and colleague, John_
Hyer, that more New Jersey res1dents go to arts events in the State
than there are New Jersey re31dents 1n our: overall populatlon. This is
a stunrlng otatlstlc. It would seem as though ~arts have come al1ve,
and ‘that the popular movement and apprec1at10n for . arts has - finally
come to pass in New Jersey. ‘ o '

‘ ‘1 won't recite the litany of sad stories, the horror stories
’vthat John Hyer‘hés been reminding us of for many years now. It just
.seems_to‘me that -- and 1 say this not only as the Chairman‘of the Arts

Cbuncil,bdt as a student of history -- that we are at the crossroads in
New Jéréey. The capital funds . that this bill would ‘génerate are
desperately neéded to make needed repairs, for refurbishing, and fqr
restorétion, The infrastructure of the State's arts environment needs
this bill. I remind you that this is not a frill need. Some years ago
-- 1 would say about 10 years ago -- the arts were widely seen as a
middle-class exercise, something fof the suburbanites, something for
those who could afford the leisure time for the arts. ' This simply is
not the case. It is clearly a quality-bf-living_issué. I ihcreasingly
see it as an issue which is linked to civil rights and the general
elevation of our people, as 1 have said to Senator Stockman several
times, ‘ | |

, It seems to me that this bill would have an interesting and

power ful  multiplier effect in terms of construction and, more

importantly, in terms of human uplift. In short, this bill would bring
to New Jersey a much needed distinctioﬁa,,lhis State needs to go on
record as being fundamentally committed to recapturing the glory of its
past. When you look at some of the structures that would be assisted
by this bill -~ the Newark Symphony Hall, The Newark Museum, and the
other facilities wupstate and downstate~~  We're talking about
facilities that were invested in and built by our grandparents. If
these facilities do not survive the twentieth century, and 1 am afraid
thav many of them will not, we have buried a part of our past, which is
linked to our very being as a democratic people. |

Many of the facilities that -would be assisted by this bill
represent the finest architecture in the Mid-Atlantic states. This is
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also important. Some Years ago;_lsaac Stern, in a concert at Newark
Symphony Hall, asked ne, "What is the Arts Council doing for the Newark
Symphony Hall?" Well, the Arts Council, as you know, does not have the
financial largess to nrovide for capital improvement in Newark Symphony:
Hall. But Isaac Stern told me that that hall is one of the finest
halls he has ever played-in and, of course, the great violinist has
- played in all the major halls across this land and beyond.
_ More recently, our consortlum met at The Newark Museum, and
: my'cclleagues on that Board were absolutely amazed at the quality of
The Newark Museum. bThey had heard about it; they heard it was a fine
museum, but they had never visited it because New Jersey does not have
the compelling image to attract people to it to visit the halls, the
museums, and the other facilities that would be assisted by this bill.

In conclusion, on behalf of my colleagues and the staff of
the Arts Council, ‘I urge your support of S5-2624. It would allow'the
State of New Jersey and its infrastructure to keep pace with the talentl
and vision that are alive and well in the State. |

Thank YOU very much. ‘ :

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Thank you, Clement. Do any members of the
Committee have any questions of Dr. Price? (negative response) Thank
you‘very much. '

" DR. PRICE: Thank you.

"SENATOR STOCKMAN: . We have three speakers from the Walt
Whitman Center who perhaps could come up now -- H. Alonzo Jennlngs,
Denise Buzz, and Virginia Steel. ,
H. ALONZO JENNINGS: That number has been reduced to one.  Senator
Lipman, members of the Commlttee, ladies and gentlemen: I am H. Alonzo
Jennings, Executive Director of the Walt Whitman Center for the Arts
and Humanities. I will be speaking on behalf of that institution,
which is located in Camden, I am going to sort of diverge from my'set
pattern. "1 have been making notes as I sat here and listened to the
~ extraordinary series of presentatlons and comments.
The Walt Whitman Center is not one of the institutions listed
- for capital funding in the blll. However, I would like to speak with

great passion and support for Senate Bill 2624 and Assembly Bill 3031.

39



1 would like to eophasize the:need'for'the,bills,»not only as they

relate to the State 'being ”second to thone in the arts, but, in
particular, that the fund. may eventually expand to include sorely

needed’ arts * facilities and programs i southern New Jersey,

‘ partlcularly the City of Camden and its surrounding mun1c1pa11t1es.

, The report,’"New Jersey and the Arts Second to None,“ the'
' presentatlon on the statement of commltment on the part of concerned

New Jersey arts centers, and the Leglslature, very convincingly

outllned -what" is needed to 1mprove the status of cultural arts in the

' State.v I‘notlced somethlng.lmportant though ;n_readlng the report. of

the 25 New‘jersey~arts centersY'projected‘summaries, none‘were from the

Camden area. I would like to further point out that the New Jersey

State Council of the Arts printed a report on grants moneys

appropriated throughout the State from 1980 to 1985.  Of those

approprlatlons, $17,867, 933 went to northern countles, and $1,466,855

went to southern counties. The total dollar ratio was $12.19 to $1.00,

northern counties to southern count;es, respectively; 92.42% and 7.58%

of that northern to southern.' The per capita ratio was $4.10 for the -
North, - to $1 00 for the South., We need as much as we can get in
'southern New Jersey. '

The New Jersey Council of the Arts' Southern Jersey Issues
Committee publlshed these figures 1n';ts efforts to,dooument the need
for State participation’in'southernvNew'Jersey, particularly Camden,
its largest concentration to the South. Council members have explored
what the City has to offer and to target moneys for the development of
ex1st1ng programs. ‘ v

Northern New Jersey cultural 1nst1tut10ns have tradltlonally
received the bulk of State fundlng from the Arts Council, whlle very
11ttle, prooortlonately, has gone to southern New Jersey, except for a
_few programs in Atlantic County, Southern New Jersey needs Senate Bill
2624 and Assembly Bill 3031 now, and in their future manifestations.

Now to focua‘on the City of Camden. The City of Camden has a -
population'of approximately 90,000 peopleg Camden County’residency is
approximately 300,000. Camden,tastl stated earlier, is the 1argest

city in southernrNew JerSey; It has a m1n0r1ty populatlon of 97%. The
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needs of Camdeneare legioh —-,the youth, the minofities,'the‘eenior
citiiens, the hendicapped, the poor, and the dispossessed. The needs
of youth in particular/'are staggefihg. - The YMCA is the only
operationel community center in the'Cityvof Camden} Art. and music have
7recent1y,been_eliminated ffom the~regular’cuffibuium;in the Camden
’echoel‘system, and there are'no'weekend activities for theiyouth?of the
City. . B o ”
- I note the significance of the fact that the City of Camden
- was forced to sell a bu11d1ng, which was donated to the City 1n 1913 by
the founder of RCA, to Rutgers University because’ it did not have the
seyeral mllllohs-kof. dollars needed to maintain the . building,
partiCularly-thefroof,,the severe water damage to the walls as:a result
of the damage to the roof, and. other structural problems. The Whitman
Corporation,‘which began in 1976, did‘not remotely approach being in a
‘.position to raise the funds necessary for cébitai improvement. The
result is that beginning in September, 1985, we w111 have to share our
'fa0111t1es ‘'with Rutgers University. - While there are advantages to
'that,.there'are also some diséd?antages.' It means giving up office
' space; it'means sharing our auditd:ium with classes from Rutgers;>and3
it also means giving‘ up 'part‘ of our independence and part of‘hour
identity. ' | | ‘ o ' ‘
o The Whitman Center for the Arts and Humanities is the only
cultural center serving the needs of the City of Camden and, to a great
extent, serving the needs of the Camden County area in general.» I
would say that also. extends into portions of Burllngton County. The
City is experiencing the initial throes of a rev1tallzat10n, I note-
the Campbell Soup Company's commitmenth‘ to rebuild its: world
headquarters in‘Camden. I note the infusion of moneys into the City hy'
‘the State to build a world-class aquarium in the port area, and the
increasing infusion of small businesses into the area. Our programlng
' fdr 1985-1986, in particular, and our progected flve-year plan, are
-de31gned to facilitate the tremendous needs which ‘exist in Camden and
ih the ‘entire area -- expanded children's programs, - fine art
exhibitiens, history and drama, and poetry, which has been our maihstay

since our creation because we initially came into existence as the Walt
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. Whltman Internatxonal Poetry Center,\ elong"with ‘tremendous jazz and.

013331ca1 musical programs. o ,-" ‘ : | -
Our plans for the near future are to again expand the

children' s programs, and to establlsh a: school where we will offer

1claoses in the arts and humanit ies to the youth of Camden,- somethlng

‘V_that is sorely 1ack1ng at the present time. We. feel we w111 grow by at

least '50% to 60% over the next two and a half to three ‘years.
| In closing, we support both bills. We sincerely hope that

the blllS will be passed. We hope that this is just the beglnnlng. We
would like to have been a part of this initial approprlatlon. We were
not,  but we are‘not crying over spilled milk. - What we are asking, .
though, is thetvin both the short and the long run, the Committee and
the State will seriously consider thefleck‘of support and the lack of
funding that has gone into the southern New Je;sey area. In future
mahifestations'of any-legislation coming out ‘regarding capitai funding
for the State, we hope . you will consider placing additional moneys into
the City of‘Camden, and the southern New Jersey region in general.

Thank you. very much. v ‘

SENATOR ~STOCKMAN: Thank . ybu very much, Mr. Jennings.
Someone complimented the Committee for their staying power. 1 thank
you and;the‘last two‘speakers who will be coming up for staying. I
would like to say, frankly, that it was interesting to hear of the
prOgreeS of the Walt Whitman Center.' I think the point about the
problem of balance between North and South Jersey is a subject of
continuing concern to the Arks Council, and I think Clement Price would
confirm that. There has been a growing effort to try to rebalance
‘that., I think it is to your credit that ‘you are supporting this
legislation even though at the moment it would appear that the Walt
Whitman Center may not be directly affected by it. I think this is an
ong01ﬂg issue that can be explored, and 1t may not necessarily continue
to be the case. ‘

1 appreciate your comlng up, and 1 am sure Lhe other
Commlttee members appreciate it too.

John, did you want to say someth1ng7

MR. HYER: That does.not,necessarlly have to be the case.

The 25 examples are simply that. There is no closed door here.
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SENATOR STUCKMAN? I didn't know whether the design of the
Center was such that at the moment it could not comply. But, you re
-~ absolutely right. The legislation-- o

MR. HYER: I would think that as long as they have the skills
to match the money, and the project is of a reasonable magnltude, there
is no door closed. The people from southern ‘New Jersey who have
‘projects that are not included in that 25 should not feel—-

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Left out e

MR. HYER: Not at all. RS

SENATOR STOCKMAN:  Frankly, they should be in the mix. I
thlnk that is a good point. ' ' |

MR. JENNINGS: That's good to know.

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Mr. Jennlngs, I think, frankly, that there -
-would be a lot of sympathy for finding some oppﬂ?tunities‘to spend some
of this money in the southern part of the State because of a
fecognition that this is a legitimate issue of sconcern to people in the
Legislature. I think it was good that you were. here today. It was
good ‘that we heard from you, not only the Commitbee;!but the people in
the audience who are part of the leadership which I think is-goihg to -
help to shape the imolementation of this legislation, if and when it
‘becomes law. So, thank you very much. ¥

| Do any of the Committee members have-sany questions? Yés,

' Senator Haines. ,

SENATOR HAINES: I just want to compliment the speaker, Mr.
Jehnings, on his bringing out the point that South Jersey is still
there. It is an important part of the State and it .gets overlooked, as
it has in this bill and in many, many other pieces of legislétion, by'-
many things‘tﬁat happen here in Trenton. I hope “the sponsors of the
bill will take what you had to say into consideration. Your speech was
very good. Thank you. '

MR. JENNINGS: Thank you very much., ,

SENATOR STOCKMAN:  Senator, incidentally, the legislaticn
specifically suggests that regional concerns and regional balance be
taken into’consideration during the course of making these grants.

Okay, thank you, Mr. Jennlngs.

MR. JENNINGS: I read that, and 1 JUSt hope that it happens.
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» SENATOR HAINES: I woﬂld just like to say:that when you look
at the state ‘of the arts  in the southern part of the State,
particularly'in our'immediate environs, the Walt Whitman Center is one
of the few, perhaps the only institution in that area, that has the
potential of being a truly regional center for the arts. We have the
facility, albeit a,small.bne, but it is fUlly eduipped. We feel we
have the capabilities to make a major‘impact_and to play an important
role in the arts in southern New Jérseya

Again, thank you very much. -

MR. JENNINGS: Thank you.

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Assemblywoman Ogden, -do you have any
questions? v , e
ASSEMBLYWUMAN'OQDEN: No;, I don't. I would just like to
reaffifm what John Hyer said before. Certainly, when all of us
participated in drafting the bill, it was with the knowledge that
‘possibly firSt it wou1d bé the northern cultural centers that would be
helped because, frankly, it is an accidentbof history. The populationi
has been.in the North; that is where the theaters have been. This is

‘why it tended to focus on them. But we really have an affirmative
obligation to also support, say, new construction down in the South,

where there’are not any cultural centefs of regional significance. We
specifiéally put that phrase'in the bill so that the South would not be.
overlooked, because increasingly that is where the population is
going. That‘is going to be almost as populated as the North one of
these days. \. | .

I know Lakewood has an'applicaﬁionn I think they are coming
along with one in Atlantic City end in Cape May. Just because the
total development plans are not ready at this point, that certainly
doés, not méan that in the next year‘ or two the proposed cultural
centers in the South will be overlooked. :They will certainly be given
very high priority. .

SENATOR HAINES: We have a Cowtown Rodeo....

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Okay, we'll keep that;ih mind. Thank you,
Assemblywoman. We have two final speakers. Wayne-Braffman has agreed

to be our final speaker to, I .guess, illustrate his absolute



tenaciousness and willingness to hold out. Philip Thomas of - the
Woodson Foundation is here. Mr.'Thomas‘is weieome to speak -- that is,
if he is still in the audience. "; 'b .

PHILIP THOMAS: Thank you very much for affordlng me the opportunlty }
even though I was not included on the list of speakers. I am here to'
speak in favor of the bills. I think they are very-lmportant.' Since I
do not have my remarks prepared in written form, I would just like to
give you a little background on myself and assure you I will forward
a copy of my remarks to you. R ’

I am a New Jersey resident, and have been most of my life,
" since I was about five years old. I went to school at Montclair State
College, where I received a degree invtheatef.‘ I founded the Greater
Paterson Arts Council in Paterson, New Jersey. I worked at the State
Arts Council here in Trenton for three years'under_the leadership of
Dr. Clement Price. I have been involved in the NEA as a fellowship
winner and also, as a pahelist. I recently completed two years at
Newark Symphony Hall as Director of Marketlng. Right now, I am
Pre31dent of the Carter G. Woodson Foundation, Chairman of the Mlnorlty
Arts Issues Committee of the State Arts Counc11, and Chairman of the
Arts Task Force of the New Jersey Black Issues Convention.. Both of’
these bodies recently passed resolutions in favor ‘of A-3031 and S$-2624,
and we are very hopeful that the approprlatlons will be made and the
1eglslat10n enacted.

New Jersey needs the support of our legislators = in
maintaining our cultural facilities and, also, restoring those that are
in need of repair. - Having worked'at Symphohy Hall'with.wayne for two
years, I am well aware of the needs of that particular facility. - I am
also well aware that if there isn't help very soon  for the Newark-
Symphony Hall, it w111 be on a route toward deterioration. It really
' needs the support of these bills. _

X I would also like to state that we have some of thelfinest
cultural institutions in the countfy in the New Jersey Symphbny, the
Paper Mill Playhouse, and our other fine cultural institutions. I
would 1like to- include a point of view that I think -needs _your

consideration, and I think my -colleagues will agree With me.
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Currently, ‘in New Jersey, there is not a maJor cultural center that is
devoted to the presentatlon, collectlon, acqu131t10n, exh1b1tlon, or
preservatlon of Afrlcan-Amerlcan theater, dance, mu51c, 11terary arts, -
or visual arts. Currently,. there is not a faclllty in New Jersey that
1s managed or operated by the Afrlcan-Amerlcan communlty of New.
Jersey. 1 think 1f we allow Senate Bill 2624 to go through without

addressing the needs" of thls partlcular taxpaylng portlon of our

‘j 01tlzenry,vwe will be mak1ng a very ‘big mlstake.

" The needs of the - Afrlcan—Amerlcan communlty are great.'
Currently, there isn't a fac111ty, w1th the exceptlon of the Crossroads
- Theater Company, which presents the work of black - playwrlghts. Just
“think if the Crossroads Theater Company 'did not exist. Where would

Afrlcan-Amerlcan playwrlghts have the opportunity to present their
work? We have some of the f1nest,black playwrlghts in the country.
Don Evans llves in New Jersey.' " Don Evans' plays' have not been
presented by any other theater company in New Jersey, a31de from the
Crossroads Theater Company, We have some‘of‘the greatest musicians --v
jazz, classical opera’singers -élwho do'not have an opportunity to
'perfbrnl or to further gain v131b111ty by the. presentatlon of their
woTks because no 1nst1tutlons are 1nterested in presentlng thelr ‘works
on a regular ba31s. ' ,

“Unless we make -some kind of a prov1s1on to address the
.1nequ1t1es, this b111_»w1ll ‘be of no ‘meaningful significance to New
Jersey' suvblack population, who comprise a ‘sizeable portion"of New
Jersey's taxpaying citiiens.:.Wefrealizefthat all of these institutions
have‘audiences thatvaregmade up of'black"citizens, but very few -of
~ these 1nst1tutlons present our. black opera 51ngers, our black c13331cal
| mus1c1ans, our Afrlcan dance companies, -and our jazz musicians. _Wei
‘have‘to‘look at this bill from the polnt‘of view of: Does it serve
,arti‘sts'7 That is the ultlmate goal of the project. 'lAudiences are
great, - nd I think we should make opportunltles to serve audiences.
.But, we also have to ensure opportunltles to increase v151b111ty and
support for artists, because they are the purveyors and the conveyors
and‘theylnterpreters of our culture. S0, unless we provide a provision
to: ensure ,that‘ artists' work - is seen, then ‘the bill ‘will‘ be

~meaningless.
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I would like to reiterate the importance of‘the'cqmment on:
the Challenge Grant. The National Endowment for the Arts created the
Challenge Grant. The importance of the Challenge Grant cannot be
stated in terms'bf what it has meant to cultural institutions around
the eduntry, The National Endowment for the Arts also had the wisdom
to create a' sister program to the ’Challenge Grant called the
"Advancement Grant Program." This particular program is geared
‘prlmarlly' toward black, Hlspanie; and small minority emergingv
organizations, so that they also have a chance to compete for the same
kinds of dollars and opportunities that the Challenge Grant afforded,
but they do not have to compete with £he larger, major established
institutions. - The National Endowment for the Arts had the wisdom to
‘create the Advancement Grant Program so that the smaller orgenizations
would have an opportuhity to compete for the dollars which are so
: important to the growth, development, and establishment of small
- minority organizations. ’ | ‘

It is very important that we look at the NEA as a model for
what we are doing. In New York City, there are many fine institutions
that have benefited‘from the Advancement Grant Program. I am quite
sure we can use that wisdom to make New Jersey a modei of fairness and
equity. _ . ,
Most important, though, is that funds be appropriated and
legislation -- S$-2624 and A-3031 -- enacted, because without the
'suppoft of the Legislature in passing those two very important bills,

the cultural 1nst1tut10ns which currently exist will no longer ex1st
‘as Mr. Price said, into the twentieth century.

Thank you very much for your time. I hope you will take the

views of all of my colleagues who spoke before me into consideration.
' Thank you. / ;
’ o SENATOR STOCKMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Thomas. One tiny
correction. Don Evans is a neighbor of mine, and a friend, and we did
get around to showihg one of his plays_at‘the Mill Hill Playhouse‘here
in Trenton recently., So, New Brunswick alone has not had ail of his
plays. ‘

MR. THOMAS: . You're right.
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 SENATOR STOCKMAN:  Semator Cardinale, do you have any
questions? S e St D
' SENATOR CARDINALE: No questlons. : —

‘SENATOR QTOC"MAN' 1 believe we have come to our last,
speaker, and he is Wayne Braffman, Director of the Newark Symphony
Hall. | E | | e |
WAYNE BRAFFMAN:  Thank you, Senator.  I had two reasons for asking to
be last. One is, I believe in the Bible -~ "The last shall be first."
Should this bill become law, I hope you:Will remember that(v But the
more important reasbn I asked to be last was, it is my job to summarize
the testimdny you have heard' today and, hopefully, put it ‘into a
perspective thatAWill allow‘yqu to movebforward from this date.

At the very beginning, Maureen Ogden mentioned five
categorles of testlmony that you would be hearlng. All of the speakers
who have preceded me have ‘talked about one or more of those subjects.
So, 1 would like to summarize them now., | ‘

You have just received two pleces of paper. One is a copy of
my testlmony. but ‘the other -- as concise as I could make it -- is one
sentence for each subJect. I think those comments bring across the
heart of what weihave tried to say. I hope you will take that one-page
sheet and keep it with you. If you have any questions, refer to that
first. I think it will jog your memory and remind you of what you have
heard today the next time the Committee meets to vote on this
legislation. o v '

The first item .is the need for these facilities. People all
across New Jersey have registered their desire to have acéesé to. the
best in the fine and performing arts in close proximity to their own
communities. This is not at all surprising given this State's great
and long-established home rule tradition. What is surprising -- and
even shocking -- is that many regions of the State have no facilities
to house the arts, and, where facilities do exist, they are, almost
without exceptior, in a state of advanced deterioration. Many of our
facilities have not been upgraded since they were built 50 or 60 years
ago. Try to imagine, if you will, jUst for a moment, driving élong the

Garden State Parkway if there had been no lane widenihg projects since
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it was first built; imagine Newark Internatipnal‘Airport without the
modernization program of the 1970s; or, imagine General'Motprs tfying
to manufacture cars today on the same assembly . 1ine and with the same
technology that was used in 1925.v . The answer is: that you cannot
. p0551bly 1maglne such absurd 31tuat10ns. ,Yet; thls is exactly the
condition of the arts industry in this State as it tries to serve the
"people of New Jersey and compete effectively in the region. ' "
' Second the bill, S$-2624: This bill will establlsh a $50

mllllon Cultural Capital Improvement Fund to be admlnlstered by the New
Jersey State Council on the Arts, with the -advice and support qf a
- panel of nationally recognized exnerta. The mechanism for distrsing
1State “funds 'is -the "Challenge Grant Program." This method is
“recommended because it maximizes the impact of every dollar spent by
the State by requiring one or two dollars of matching funds to be
raised for every dollar_of State funds expended. - No single facility
may receive more than 10% of the total fund,.thus guaranteeing'that all:
:egions of the State will be served. Review by a panel of'nationally
' recognized;arts experts will guarantee adherenCe to qnality standards
in the design and renovation of our facilities. We believe this bill
has been carefully and thoughtfully structured. |
‘ Third, matching funds ‘and the questlon of prestige. Wltn
thlS legislation, the State of New Jersey has the power. to- change the
climate within ~which our arts institutions must VOperate. . By
) establishing this Challenge Grant Program, the State of New Jesey will
focus national, as well as local, attention upon us. vThevsuccess of
tne Nat ional Endowment for the Arts' Challenge Grant Program provides.a
~ clear indication of the beneficial impact that this legislation can
have. " The prestlge of belng selected by a natlonally recognlzed panel
and de31gnated as a Challenge Grant rec1p1ent by the State of New
-Jersey, will catapult an arts institution . into an atmosphere of
enhanced fund raising potential.  There ia no doubt in'my mind that
municipalities, counties, corporations, philanthropies, and individual
New Jerseyans~nill respond positively to this challenge.

-Fourth, the economic impact of the arts. You have received

wrltten and oral testimony from sources as. dlverse as the Port
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Authority, independent = consultants, economists, and mayors, all-
attesting: to the stimulative economic  effect of cultural facilities
operating at full capacity. By their‘veryvnature, the arts are, and
always w1ll be, a labor intensive 1ndustry. People 901ng to and from
arts events represent a ‘demand for goods and services which is normally
‘met by restaurants, shops, and small bu91nesses‘spr1nglng up adjacent
to arts facilities. The arts are- thus seeh as a clean industry, one
that attracts additionaliinvéstment. This pattern has been repeatéd
across the nation in rural,j subUrbah, and urban situations alike.
Going beyond this 1mmedlate 1mpact of JObS, ‘income, sales, and tax
‘generation, the arts and arts facilities also have the unidue power to
change and sdfteh the imégé of even the hardest, most maligned cities.
Look ‘at alhost any ad in The Wall Street Journal encouraging businesses

ahd'industries to locate in a particUlar‘city or state, and somewhere
in that ad you will see a picture or a reference to that reglon s
cultural 1nst1tut10ns° The Port Authorlty summed it up best in its
1983 study of the arts by concluding: "There are probably few areas in
which public investment carries such a high monetary return to thié
region,"' ' | i ) ' ,
. And Finally, the quality of life issue. ~We came today as

representatives of the people of this State who attend our events; as
| spokesmen for the schoolb children who would otherwise be denied
v éxpdsure ko éohe of the most beautiful elements of their heritage; and,
we came on behalf of all of those New Jerseyans who feel forced to
travel tb ~New York - and Philadelphia for cultural enrichment and
spiritual uplifting"beéause they don't believe there are quality arts
and‘a:tsbfacilities in their home State. I'm not_talking about small
or elite groups of pebple. Without.exaggération, I'm talking about
-millidnsfof New Jerseyans from all walks of life, from every corner of
the State, from every facial and ethnic background, and from every
ecohpmic condition. And why such a universal demand for the arts? To
be honest, 1 don't really know. Pérhaps in this‘-high tech world,
péople have a growing need to experience‘beauty together and to touch
éaéh other -- sqmething you cannot‘dd through a video screen.‘ We tell

our children not to dO'drugs,'bUt'have.wé given them something better
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to aspire to? As for the rest of us, maybe we‘are justtproud of‘our.
State and only want the best for it, whether it be educatlon, sports,
or, in thlS case, the arts ‘and cultural fa0111t1es.

' We are firm bellevers in our motto, and I hope after today
you will join us in wearlng this button and also declarlng ﬁNew
_ Jersey and the Arts Second to None." Thank you. : : ' ,b
- -SENATOR STOCKMAN: = Thank you very much, Mr. Braffman. That
_ completes the testimohy on Senate Bill 2624 and the publlc hearlng‘of~‘

the Senate State Government Committee. 1 think the testimony was very
'enllghtenlng and I hope it w1ll be well reported by the medla. ;I’hope
‘no one here believes that the job is done by any means. 1 would
'encourage you in terms of the Senate bill to appeal to your 1nd1v1dual
v;leglslators, to appeal especially to the leadership of the GSenate, and,
~ of course, to appeal to the membershlp of the Revenue,. Finance; and
Approprlatlons Committee, through which' this bill will also have to
pass. ‘ S : '
. I am optimistic -- well, I was optlmlstlc before ‘this
_hearing, but" I think espec1ally since hearing from these many witnesses
-- that this Committee will show sympathy‘and support to quickly movlng
the bill out of Committee.‘ Then it will have to move through the
Revenue, Finance; and Apprbpriations Committee; I ask that you -
continue to make every effort to persuade them of the‘rightness, thep
sensibility, and the w1sdom of this new commitment that Assemblywoman
Ugden and I are supportlng legislatively. o
1 also want to thank the Commlttee members who have spent a
great deal of time listening today. Senator Cardinale, would you like
to add anything? | S :
SENATOR ' CARDINALE: I would like to say 1 have been very,L
'3-very impressed with the testimony and,the speCifics-of‘the test imony |

‘that have been offered here today. The testimony was voluminous, and

B will all go on the public record. It is all going'tovbe»transcribed.

So, if any of the other legislators have any doubts that there is
wide-based support for this kind of a movement, I think that can easily ‘f
be dispelled by simply giving them a copy of the testimony that we have
taken today. - '
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1 was impresSed'enough with it sbout an hour - ago‘to speak to
Senator Stockman, and he grac1ous1y added me as a cosponsor of the
bill. It is unfortunate that - the blll was listed in the fashion in
which it was listed today.o If any of you are confused, the only reason

o we dld not vote on it was because thls was listed 51mp1y as a hearlng,

we were not to take a vote. Our fallure to take a vote is no
1nd1cat10n of .a lack of support. I'm sure it will be voted on at our
next meeting and will go on in the appropriate legislative process.

I want to compllment all of you for having very
- well- thought-out and very well-put- together presentatlons. I think you
can’ probably count on the support of everyone on the Committee.

‘MR.ﬁBRAFFMAN: Thank you, Senator.
_ , SENATUR STOCKMAN: Assemblywoman Ugden, would you 11ke to add
~ anything? | :
| ~ ASSEMBLYWOMAN OGDEN: I would just like to thank everyone for
thelr staylng power, including the members of the Committee. I would
like to commend Senator Cardinale for coming on board and being so
enthused about the preSentationsitoday that he has now also become an
adVocate end'a~sponsor.‘-1 would like to thank everyone who has made
this hearing possible, the reallyvup-front support. 1 would like to
thank all of the witnesses for their well-thought-out_presentations -
as SenatOr Cardinale and Senator = Stockman have said -- and for
exploring,‘really,in every possible way, the importencerf this arts
infrastructure, the Capital ImproVement,FUnd, It was presented in a
complete and very eloquent way. = It is Very apparent,to-those who did
‘not start out nith the knowledge that all of you have, why this is so
important“for the State of_Neu Jersey; Wayne, specielvthanks to you
for helping‘to orchestrate‘this entire présentstion.

. So, thanks to everyone who came today because it has really
‘been=—- Euen'thcugh i have been involved with it, I eértainlyflearned‘a
lot today too. 1 know we all appreoiate the effort that everyone made,
“not onlv in making their presentatmns9 but also in coming to Trenton

and waltlng their turns.
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SENATOR STOCKMAN' Thank you,'Maureen; ‘With a repeat of the

slogan, "New Jersey and the Arts Second to None," I will adJourn this

pub11c hearlng 4 Thank you.

~ (HEARING CONCLUDED)

Fok
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CUI.TURHL CENT R INC

19 Livingston Avenue . _
'P.O. Box 1114 ,
New Brunswuck New Jersey 0890o

£ (201) 247-7200

.

DONALD R. STREIBIG

In November, 1983, Donald R. Streibig was named executive direetort
of the New Brumswick Cultural Center, bringing 28 years experience in

| arts management as former manager of the historic landmark Ohio Theatre -
in Columbus, executive director of the Ohio Qrts COUncil,'command

‘ entertalnment director of the U.S. Army, Europe, Special Serv1ces soldier

 show program, and college instructor of theatre.

A graduateiof Heidelberg Collegeyaud Bowling»Green State University
(Ohio), Streibig's revitalization of the Ohio Theatre'setvau'early.example

for similar projects about the nation.

His assignment in New Jersey is to oversee the renovation and expansion
. .of the 1921 State Theatre into a 2,000-seét multi-discipline performing

arts center serving the cultural life in Central New Jersey.

Mr. Streibig is chairman and founder of the New Jersey Presenters .
Roundtable, former treasurer of the League of Historic Amerlcan Theatres,
and a member of the International Association of Auditorium Managers and

~the Association of College, University and Community Arts Agencies.



S-2624 New Jersey Cultural Cap1ta1 Immprovement Fund
Summarz ; -

I. THE NEED
There is an arts infrastructure emergency in New Jersey todayfmarkedv'
by the functional and technological obsolescence of existing facilities

and the absence of appropriate facilities of any k1nd in many parts of
the State :

- II. S-2624r— NEW JERSEY CULTURAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

This legislation is a carefully concelved and prudent response to
the problem by establishing a challenge grant mechanism which maximizes
the impact of State funds while sateguarding the public trust.

I11. MATCHING GRANTS

Only - the State of New. Jersey has the resources necessary to initiate
a.solution to a problem of this magnitude and, by its leadership, stimulate
the private and other public support necessary to successfully complete the
program. :

IV. ECONOMIC IMPACT

All across the country, investment in cultural facilities has stimulated
local economic development while generally improving the business climate in
the host state.

V. QUALITY OF LIFE
Culture and the arts are synonymous with quality of 1ife and New Jersevans

from a1l walks of 1ife, all racial, ethnic, and economic hackgrounds, and all
ages h\VU expressed thlr snpporL for thls 1n1L1nL1ve
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KENNETH A.GIBSON'
MAYOR
NEWARK, NEw JERSEY
07102
Statement of
Mayor Kenneth A. Gibson
to the
Senate State Government Committee

 July 22, 1985

Alihavé long‘been>én advoCate 6f the necessary improveﬁents for‘
our State's‘ana'cities‘ infrastructure 6f roads, biidges, seﬁagev
systems énd the like. However, it is now important to turn our‘

- attention to a new area’—-‘the_crumbling arts infraétructuref—

vwhich is‘just as importanﬁ_to the well-being of our resiaents.

Newark's g:andySymphony Hall was built in 1925. The Newark'»

Museuﬁ, which‘bringé usinaﬁional recognition, wasbcompleﬁed

one yearvléter, in 1926; Neither of‘these structures has
"exéérienced a major moderﬁization since thei: original construc-

tion.

In 1985, the City of Newark dedicated $3.3 million toward the
rehabilitation of these two great facilities, which represen£5'
an expenditure of $10 per capita on the part of the City;‘ Con-

seguently I can strongly recommend to you, and in fact urge you,
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~Page Two-

to support Senate Biil 2624, for a $50 million Cultural Capital
Improvement alldcétion from the State of New Jersey. This will

represent less than $7 per capita from our wealthy State.

Passage of thé‘Cultural Capital Iﬁprovement_Bill'is.important
'for‘seﬁefal reasons:"

~ The expepditﬁfe of fﬁnds to help our crumbling cultural
edificies is certainiy iustified'alone by’the meri£s of these
orgéniiations. They bring:gntoid‘enrichment to the City and
the people who live here. ‘They are a stimulus'for-economic
developmént. Rehéissance.Newark, for example, pfominently
‘ﬁighlights thé City's cultural facilities in all of its market-
ing efforts to bring‘neQ iﬁvestors and businesses to Newark.
Fﬁrtﬁ;rmore, these cultural'éenters ére anchors for additional
developménﬁ: édjaéent to tﬁe‘NeWark Museum you will find the
historiéxJames_Stréet Commoﬁé ;ésidential areé:and the newly

restored Washington Park.
On a greater séale, the existence of these‘cultural facilities

helps to change the entire image of the City as a place for

people, not just of "hard streets and cold buildings."

22X



thage Three

. Mesthimportant(-hdweQer('itvis'et:theée:institutions - theh
.Museuh and Symphony Hallf—- where our ybung bedﬁle caﬁ explore
' other cultures, past and present, and experlence all the beautyv’
- and rlchness of their own culture, chlldren who mlght otherw1se,

v-be,denled access_tO‘thelr heritage.

‘The fabric of life?in Newarkvahd'the State at lérge is enhaneed
immeasurably’by the presenee'oftthese_ihstitutionsiand-the
‘Centinued growth of the sefvices they provide. Please join
w1th the Clty of Newark in enabllng them to expand their ser-

'v1ce to the communlty by supportlng S5-2624.
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R , B_arbéra Boggs Sigrhund, Mayor

July 22, 1985

- The Honorable Wynona M. Lipman
Chairman. ' R
Senate State Gov't. Committee
State House Annex, Rm 114

~ West State Street o
Trenton, NJ 08618

- Dear Senator Lipman and members’of thevSéﬁate"State:vaernment COmmittee;

Only a'pressingvéngagemént'wou1d keep me from the heéring today on
$2624 and A 3031, the bills to provide $50 million for arts facilities in
our state. S S L . : .

Those of us who are privilegedvto'servéﬂour community in elected office
exercise that privilege most-nobly when we help to create the conditions
through which our citizens can pursue happiness, peace, prosperity and beauty.

, The bills before the Senate Government Committee today would create
Aimportant job opportunities for many, both in the construction trades and in
the artistic trades. But, just as importantly, these bills would give every

-~ citizen in New Jersey, through you, the chance to enhance his or her own
pursuit of happiness and beauty. These benefits, though less tangible than
bricks and mortar, are just as real, and of inestimable importance tc the

- health and well-being of a great many people. They are benefits that know
no boundaries of class, race, sex nor age. ‘ ‘ ' o

 Because we face so many'exigencies at all levels of government, and.

must meet so many needs, it is rare that we are able to act so boldly and
- positively for the arts. Please use the fact that New Jersey enjoys a.

EX



 The Hon. wynona M. Lipman
‘Pagé two

 July 22, 1985

a surplus to spend it in th1s 1mportant manner,’ not just for thlS year,
but for the ages. :

' Slncerely, ‘ '
-_:fi;vtfk>cbh,4&.‘~E; ss“?fhuauuﬁl/éﬁﬁa_
‘Barbara B. Sigmund ,

Mayor .
Borough of Princeton

BBS:pay
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,TESTIMONY OF ARTHUR J. HOLLAND; MAYOR
OF THE CITY OF TRENTON, BEFORE THE SENATE
STATE GOVERNMENT, FEDERAL AND INTERSTATE
RELATIONS AND VETERANS' AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
~ ON S-2624, THE NEW JERSEY CULTURAL
IMPROVEMENT FUND, ON JULY 22, 1985.

‘S~2624, spthored by Sénétor Gera1d Stdékman; enables
Tfent@n“to improve aﬁd'moderﬁize'its majbr performing arts
center, the Waf~Memorial Building, ‘This structure, located
at Lafayet;e andearrack Streets, sefvés all'of Mercer County

fand,pérts of Hunterdoh and Burlingfon-Counties, as weil as
- ﬁortidns-qf neighboring‘PennsyIVania; Hoﬁe of the’Tfenton
Symphdny5 thi$‘regibna1 cUltural facility hosts numefous
pléys, musica1$; concerts, aﬁd éoﬁventions. 'The beliéf among
‘performing artists is that the War Memorial Building has -
the best acoustics in New Jersef. Last summer, thebLegislature
passed and theVCévernor signed a $1}5 miilion appropriation
_for the Wér Memorial specifitally-fof repairs.. This money
would not be n&ceésary if a ﬁechéﬁiém such as S-2624 were
in place. |

| Under the pioViéions’of'this.bill, a Cultural Capital
‘Improvement Coordinating-Commifteévwill administer the $50
million New Jersey Cultural Capital Improvement Fund. Each
E qualifying culturalkcenter must‘submit a capital improvemeﬁt_
development plan to the Committee demonstrating an ability
to raisevthe requiféd matching funds and plan fbr use of

the fund; ’Allcéations are based on a project’'s ability to raise
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| Sl.OO ofvnon-publié funds for every 81300 of State aid.SoUght‘

‘and $1.00 of non-State publlc funds for every $.50 of State
'ald‘soughtf In the case of the War Memor1a1 Bu11d1ng, both
'.Mercerjcbunty and Trenton-allocate'fundikfor maintenance
:-'and opefatiﬁg éxpenses ahd thus, withﬁ;*proper capital.
bvlmprovement plan, qualify for fundlng

| This bill provides a stable fundlng source for malntaln155

and modern1z1ng New Jersey's cultural centers, such ‘as the

- War Memorial Bu1ld1ng.' Moreover, moder'g erformlng arts

cenfers attract quality entertainment,.increase attendance
at the'facility, and provide the incentiwve for business and
’1ndustry to locate in a communlty

1 urge you to release favorably S 2624

Wy
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